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1                     PROCEEDINGS

2               JUDGE JONES:  Good morning.  I call for

3 hearing Docket Number 13-0446.  This is titled in

4 part Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C., a

5 Petition Pursuant to Section 8-509 of the Public

6 Utilities Act.

7               At this time we will take the

8 respective appearances orally for the record.  We

9 will start with those who are present in the --

10 well, let me back up.  We will start with

11 appearances on behalf of the Applicant.  If you

12 have entered an appearance previously at one of

13 these hearings, you need not restate your contact

14 information unless it has changed or unless you

15 simply prefer to do that.

16               We will start with the appearance or

17 appearances on behalf of the Petitioner, Enbridge

18 Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C..

19               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you, Judge.  For

20 Petitioner Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C.,

21 the law firm of Sidley Austin, LLP, One South

22 Dearborn Street, Chicago, Illinois 60603 by Dale E.

23 Thomas.

24               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  And you are
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1 in the Chicago hearing room; is that correct?

2               MR. THOMAS:  I am.

3               MS. BACK:  Your Honor, also in the

4 Chicago hearing room is Amy Back, in-house counsel

5 with Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C..

6               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

7               Are there other appearances to be

8 entered by those who are in the Commission hearing

9 room in Chicago?

10               MR. FEELEY:  John Feeley, Office of

11 General Counsel, representing Staff of the Illinois

12 Commerce Commission.

13               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

14               Are there any other appearances by

15 attorneys who are physically present in the Chicago

16 hearing room?

17                      (No response)

18               JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

19 are not.

20               We will take appearances from those who

21 are present in the Springfield hearing room.  Who

22 would like to start?

23               DR. PLIURA:  Tom Pliura, P-l-i-u-r-a,

24 210 East Center Street, P.O. Box 130, LeRoy,
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1 Illinois, on behalf of Petitioners who have filed

2 appearances under the name Pliura Intervenors.

3               MR. OLIVERO:  And appearing on behalf

4 of the Staff witnesses, Jim Olivero, O-l-i-v as in

5 Victor -e-r-o, and I believe my address and phone

6 number have previously been provided.

7               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

8               MR. TURNER:  Mercer Turner, attorney,

9 Bloomington, Illinois.  I'm appearing here today on

10 behalf of an intervenor where I filed the petition

11 to intervene and also on behalf of a previously

12 recognized intervenor, Al Killian from Lexington,

13 Illinois.

14               JUDGE JONES:  What do you mean by

15 previously recognized intervenor Al Killian?

16               MR. TURNER:  Well, he's intervened and

17 no one's sought to have his intervention stricken.

18               MR. THOMAS:  Judge, this is Dale Thomas

19 of Enbridge.  I believe Mr. Killian is one of the

20 five individuals -- intervenors who actually filed

21 testimony that Tom Pliura served on the parties.

22               DR. PLIURA:  Yeah.

23               MR. THOMAS:  We -- you know, depending

24 upon whatever arrangement Mr. Pliura and Mr. Turner
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1 have, we wouldn't object to his participating on

2 behalf of Al Killian.  However, we still maintain a

3 -- our motion to strike his attempted intervention

4 on behalf of himself for the reasons we set forth

5 in that.  And I'm not sure that the judge has --

6 you have not set a briefing schedule.  I wasn't

7 sure what your pleasure was on that.

8               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So, Mr.

9 Turner, you're appearing on behalf of Al Killian?

10               MR. TURNER:  Yes, Your Honor.

11               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  And, Dr.

12 Pliura, you're appearing on behalf of whom?

13               DR. PLIURA:  I would have to look at my

14 list.  There are previously filed a variety of

15 intervenors in addition to Al Killian.  There are I

16 think 12 or 15.

17               JUDGE JONES:  Are you appearing on

18 behalf of Al Killian also?

19               DR. PLIURA:  I am.  But Mr. Turner will

20 be asking questions on his behalf.  What happened

21 was Mr. Turner previously represented Al Killian.

22 There was some miscommunication I believe and

23 Mr. Killian asked us to get involved and then -- it

24 didn't matter.  We're doing the same thing.  So Mr.
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1 Turner also represents Mr. Killian.

2               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

3               Are there any other appearances to be

4 entered by those who are present in the Springfield

5 or Chicago hearing rooms?

6                      (No response)

7               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Let the

8 record show there are not.

9               Was there one other person who wanted

10 to make an appearance by phone?

11               MR. HOLESTINE:  Yes.  This is Andrew

12 Holestine.  I'm making an appearance on behalf of

13 the Holestine and Armstrong Trust Intervenors, and

14 I'll be appearing by phone.  And my contact

15 information was previously entered into the record

16 in the last hearing.

17               JUDGE JONES:  And that's what you'll be

18 doing today, just entering your appearance; is that

19 right?

20               MR. HOLESTINE:  Yes.  That was my

21 intent.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Are there any

23 other appearances?

24                      (No response)
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1               JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show no

2 response at this time.

3               To briefly go over the process and

4 procedures for today's hearing, including but not

5 limited to the calling and examination of witnesses

6 and the sequence of that, we hereby go off the

7 record.

8                      (Discussion off the record.)

9               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Let

10 the record show there was an off-the-record

11 discussion for the purposes indicated.  There are

12 some witnesses who it appears will be

13 cross-examined today.  I believe by agreement or

14 concurrence or at least non-objection from the

15 parties, the Staff will be calling its witness

16 first.

17               Is that correct, Mr. Feeley or Mr.

18 Olivero?

19               MR. OLIVERO:  That is, Your Honor.

20               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So do you

21 wish to call that witness at this time?

22               MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, Your Honor.  We

23 could call Mark Maple to the stand.

24         JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please stand and be
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1 sworn.

2                     MARK MAPLE,

3 of lawful age, produced, sworn, and examined on

4 behalf of the Staff, testifies and says:

5               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

6 seated.

7               Since we're in different places, if

8 anyone is having any trouble hearing anybody else,

9 let us know, and we'll take whatever measures we

10 need to to improve that situation.

11               Also, for the court reporter's benefit,

12 since we will have some parties participating on

13 the phone, if you -- as you do so, if you would

14 just state your name again before you proceed with

15 your questions or whatever else you're saying, at

16 least initially, I think that would help our court

17 reporter attribute your input to you as opposed to

18 somebody else.

19               Mr. Olivero.

20               MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 QUESTIONS BY MR. OLIVERO:

23        Q.       Would you please state your full name

24 for the record and spell your last name for the
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1 court reporter?

2        A.       My name is Mark Maple, M-a-p-l-e.

3        Q.       And who is your employer and what is

4 your business address?

5        A.       I'm employed by the Illinois Commerce

6 Commission.  My address is 527 East Capitol Avenue,

7 Springfield, Illinois 62701.

8        Q.       And what is your position with the

9 Illinois Commerce Commission?

10        A.       I'm a Senior Gas Engineer.

11        Q.       Did you prepare a written exhibit for

12 submittal in this proceeding?

13        A.       Yes, I did.

14        Q.       And do you have before you a document

15 which has been marked for identification as ICC

16 Staff Exhibit 1.0, which consists of a cover page,

17 nine pages of narrative testimony, Attachments A

18 and B, and is titled Direct Testimony of Mark

19 Maple?

20        A.       Yes.

21        Q.       And did you prepare that document for

22 presentation in this matter?

23        A.       Yes, I did.

24        Q.       And do you have any additions,
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1 deletions, corrections, or modifications to ICC

2 Staff Exhibit 1.0?

3        A.       No.

4        Q.       Is the information contained in ICC

5 Staff Exhibit 1.0 true and correct to the best of

6 your knowledge?

7        A.       Yes.

8        Q.       And if you were asked the same series

9 of questions today as set forth in ICC Staff

10 Exhibit 1, would your answers be the same?

11        A.       Yes.

12               MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, at this time

13 I would move for admission into the evidentiary

14 record ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0, including Attachments

15 A and B, and I would note for the record that this

16 is the same document that was filed on the

17 Commission's e-Docket system on November 1st, 2013.

18               And we would tender Mr. Maple for

19 cross-examination.

20               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Is there any

21 response to that motion?

22               DR. PLIURA:  Pliura Intervenors have no

23 objection.

24               MR. THOMAS:  This is Dale Thomas.
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1 Enbridge has no objection.

2               JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

3 ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 is admitted into the

4 evidentiary record as it appears on the

5 Commission's e-Docket system with a filing date of

6 November 1, 2013.

7                      (ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 admitted.)

8               JUDGE JONES:  It appears that there are

9 some cross-examination questions for Mr. Maple.

10 Before we get to those, I should probably backtrack

11 a minute.

12               As noted, the intervening petition

13 filed by Mr. Turner is the subject of a pending

14 objection.  Mr. Turner, do you want an opportunity

15 to file a response to that objection?

16               MR. TURNER:  Yes, Your Honor.

17               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Leave will be

18 given to Mr. Turner to file a written response to

19 that objection.  In the meantime, he will be

20 permitted to participate subject to the provisions

21 of and conditions of Section 200.200(b) and (e) of

22 the Commission's Rules of Practice.  With regard to

23 some specific scheduling to apply to that, we will

24 take that up later on in this hearing rather than
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1 right now.

2               Any questions about that?

3               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, Dale Thomas

4 for Enbridge.

5               If we might suggest, it depends upon

6 whether this is okay both by you, of course, and by

7 Mr. Turner.  The gist of -- our main complaint in

8 his filed petition is that there were strong

9 suggestions we felt that he was not going to abide

10 by your rulings as to the narrow scope of this

11 proceeding, and intervention for matters that are

12 outside the scope of this proceeding shouldn't be

13 allowed.

14               If Mr. Turner is willing to represent

15 on the record today that he intends to abide by

16 those rulings, we have no problem and we would

17 withdraw our motion.  And he will be participating,

18 in any event, for Mr. Killian.

19               MR. TURNER:  Well, Your Honor, if he

20 would let me respond, I would make such a

21 representation.  And any suggestions about that

22 certainly didn't emanate from me.  Thank you.

23               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

24               MR. THOMAS:  Well, with that, that is
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1 then acceptable to Enbridge, Your Honor, and we

2 will withdraw our motion to strike his

3 intervention.

4               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Thanks to

5 Counsel for Enbridge and to Mr. Turner for

6 clarifying that.

7               At this time then, we will commence

8 with the cross-examination of the witness.

9               Dr. Pliura, are you ready to begin with

10 that?

11               DR. PLIURA:  I am.

12                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY DR. PLIURA:

14        Q.       Mr. Maple, with regards to your

15 prepared exhibit, ICC 1.0 and attached --

16 Attachments A and B, could you just summarize what

17 that document and those attachments are?

18        A.       Yes.  My testimony lays out criteria

19 that the Commission has recently used to determine

20 whether or not eminent domain should be granted,

21 and I address each of those five criteria and

22 explain how Enbridge has met those criteria and

23 ultimately should receive eminent domain.

24        Q.       Is it your opinion that Enbridge should
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1 receive eminent domain in this proceeding?

2        A.       Yes, that's what my testimony says.

3        Q.       With regards to the five points or

4 criteria that the Department has used, I'd like to

5 go through those with you just briefly, not in

6 depth, but what are the five criteria that you

7 used?

8        A.       On page 5 of my testimony I list the

9 criteria as:  Number 1, the number and extent of

10 contacts with the landowners; number 2, whether the

11 utility has explained its offer of compensation;

12 number 3, whether the offers of compensation are

13 comparable to offers made to similarly situated

14 landowners; number 4, whether the utility has made

15 an effort to address landowner concerns; and number

16 5, whether further negotiations will likely prove

17 fruitful in reaching negotiated settlements.

18        Q.       Mr. Maple, with regards to the number

19 of landowners involved in this proceeding, do you

20 know how many landowners are facing eminent domain

21 proceedings here, how many tracts there are?

22        A.       I believe in the rebuttal testimony of

23 John McKay he listed -- I think it was 148.  Let me

24 -- let me check on that.
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1        Q.       Well, just for the purposes of this,

2 we'll say it's over 140.  I don't think the exact

3 number is that important, but it's about 140 plus

4 or minus?

5        A.       That sounds about right.

6        Q.       Mr. Maple, did you make any attempt

7 whatsoever to talk to or contact any of those

8 140-plus landowners?

9        A.       I did not contact them.  I -- I may

10 have received a call or two, and I don't know if it

11 was from any of those landowners or not.

12        Q.       Is it fair to say you don't know then

13 whether you talked to any landowner involved in

14 these ICC eminent domain proceedings that might be

15 subject to eminent domain?

16        A.       That's fair to say.

17        Q.       Okay.  With regards to the issue of

18 whether or not Enbridge properly explained to the

19 landowners, how is it that you came to the

20 conclusion that Enbridge properly explained its

21 proposal to the landowners?  What -- if you didn't

22 talk to anybody, what process did you use to make

23 sure that the landowners received proper

24 information from Enbridge?
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1        A.       I would point you to my testimony on

2 page 6, I believe it is, where I say that Enbridge

3 sent letters to each of the landowners that had

4 drawings showing the easement location on the

5 property, the right-of-way and easement grant

6 document, temporary workspace agreements, a copy of

7 the agricultural impact mitigation agreement, and

8 offers for the easements.

9        Q.       Did you, Mr. Maple, look at any of the

10 actual offers that were made to the individual

11 landowners?

12        A.       Not to the individual landowners.  I

13 believe I saw some generic offer language but not

14 specific offers.

15        Q.       If you did not look at the actual

16 offers to the 140-plus landowners, how is it that

17 you came to a conclusion that the offers were fair

18 and reasonable in this particular case or

19 proceeding?

20        A.       Well, Enbridge explained how the offers

21 were going to be made, that they were using

22 certified appraisers to value the land.  Enbridge

23 gave the percentages in their testimony that they

24 were going to be offering, which was I believe -- I



93

1 think it was 125 percent for permanent easements

2 and 50 percent for temporary workspace.  And also,

3 I went off of the fact that I had not received any

4 calls or complaints to the contrary that they had

5 made fair offers.

6        Q.       Mr. Maple, did you make any comparison

7 whatsoever about what property values were for

8 similarly situated properties yourself?

9               MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I'm going to

10 object.  I think this is beyond the scope of what

11 Mr. Maple has indicated his expertise is in this

12 area for purposes of evaluating and providing

13 testimony.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

15               DR. PLIURA:  Sure.  Of the five

16 criteria, I believe Mr. Maple indicated that the

17 third criteria was -- he reviewed was whether

18 comparable offers had been made.  And my notes

19 suggest that, among other things, the five

20 criteria, he made a determination that the offers

21 were fair and based on comparable values.  That's

22 why I'm asking questions about that issue.

23               JUDGE JONES:  Any further argument?

24               MR. OLIVERO:  Well, I guess I just
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1 wanted to point out it was comparable offers to

2 similarly situated landowners.  I don't know if it

3 was that he gave an opinion in terms of a value --

4 property values for any of the tracts of that or

5 any of the landowners.

6               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

7               I will allow the question subject to

8 the following:  The witness will be asked to answer

9 the question, if he understands the question and if

10 he has an answer to give to that question.

11        A.       Could you repeat the question?

12        Q.       Well, sure.  We started out, just

13 briefly, you indicated that the Department has

14 basically five criteria, one of which was whether

15 or not the offers were commensurate or reasonable

16 considering comparable or similarly situated tracts

17 of property.  And I don't want to put words in your

18 mouth, but my question is:  With regards to that

19 third criteria, how did you come to determine that

20 the third criteria had been met if you in fact did

21 not talk to any landowners or anybody about other

22 comparable offers?

23               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Now, that is

24 a somewhat different question.  Are you still -- is
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1 your objection still pending or are you okay with

2 the way that one's worded?

3               MR. OLIVERO:  I guess I'm a little more

4 okay with the way that was one was asked based on

5 what the third criteria was.

6               JUDGE JONES:  So we'll treat that as

7 essentially a withdrawing of the earlier question

8 and replacing with that question.  There's no

9 objection to it, so Mr. Maple.

10        A.       I reviewed the lands market study, as I

11 say on page 7 of my testimony, that the appraiser,

12 Edward J. Batis and Associates, put out that

13 explained how they arrived at land values for the

14 different counties where the tracts were, and I

15 also -- as I said before, Enbridge explained that

16 they were offering the same percentage, the 125

17 percent for permanent easements and 50 percent for

18 temporary workspace, to all the landowners along

19 the route.  So that would in itself be kind of a

20 way of offering a similar offer to similarly

21 situated landowners.

22        Q.       With regards to the fourth criteria,

23 specifically as to whether there were any landowner

24 concerns, did you make any contact with any
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1 landowners to discuss whether or not they had --

2 the landowners had any non-monetary concerns,

3 concerns such as environmental issues, potential

4 spills, or other non-monetary issues?

5        A.       I did not.  Due to the large number of

6 landowners involved, that would be overly

7 burdensome.  I would expect that if any landowner

8 had an issue that they would intervene and provide

9 that -- that complaint and testimony.

10        Q.       You're familiar, aren't you, with the

11 fact that a few landowners did submit information

12 via testimony in this particular case?

13        A.       Yes.

14        Q.       Okay.  Would environmental issues be of

15 importance -- if a landowner had environmental

16 concerns about a potential spill, would that be

17 something important to the Department as to whether

18 or not reasonable efforts at negotiation had

19 occurred between Enbridge and the landowners?

20               MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I guess I'm

21 going to object because I'm not exactly clear where

22 Mr. Pliura's going with potential spills or that.

23 I mean it seems to me that he's asking Mr. Maple to

24 somewhat speculate on if those concerns I guess
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1 were addressed with the landowners.  I mean it just

2 seems to me when you're talking about potential

3 spills or that, that could happen anywhere on any

4 pipeline along any tracts.

5               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

6               DR. PLIURA:  Well, sure.  Since --

7 since the original filing in 07-466, obviously,

8 Your Honor, there have been spills in Kalamazoo,

9 there have been spills in Romeoville, and across

10 the country.  One of the issues from a purely

11 non-monetary standpoint is how landowners who are

12 going to be subject to eminent domain will be dealt

13 with in the event there is a spill similar to what

14 has happened since the original filing, and it

15 seems like the landowners have a legitimate concern

16 for that.  So I'm just trying to flesh out what it

17 is that the ICC did to determine that Enbridge had

18 properly communicated an answer to any potential

19 concerns about environmental issues, including

20 spills.

21        Q.       What is it the ICC did to make a

22 determination that those concerns had been dealt

23 with by ICC?

24               JUDGE JONES:  Do you understand the
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1 question?

2        A.       I would like him to repeat or rephrase

3 the question.

4               DR. PLIURA:  Happy to do so.

5        Q.       What actual documents or materials did

6 the ICC review that led you to come to the

7 conclusion that any landowner concerns over

8 environmental issues or potential spills had been

9 adequately addressed by Enbridge?

10               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, this is Dale

11 Thomas of Enbridge.  I would simply like to point

12 out for the record that the ICC in fact has dealt

13 with this very issue in great detail in the

14 Flanagan South proceeding and determined that the

15 company's procedures were adequate to protect the

16 public interest and those procedures have been

17 followed on every pipeline the company has.

18               I'm not sure where Mr. Pliura wants to

19 go with this, but it does seem to me this is

20 outside the bounds of what this proceeding should

21 be about.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Further argument?

23               DR. PLIURA:  I don't know who the

24 Flanagan South applicant is.  I don't know what
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1 that project is other than just being --

2 peripherally seeing a map of something about

3 Flanagan South.  But we're dealing with Enbridge

4 Pipelines (Illinois) here, and I'm just going down

5 the five criteria that Mark Maple testified that he

6 used.  If it's nothing, then it's nothing.  I mean

7 I don't know what the answer is other than I just

8 wanted to know if the ICC -- what it is it reviewed

9 or heard, what evidence it inspected that's now in

10 the record that led it to the belief that any

11 non-monetary issues, such as environmental

12 concerns, had been adequately dealt with by

13 Enbridge, the Applicant.

14               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, this is Dale

15 Thomas of Enbridge.  I don't want to belabor this.

16 I just want to point out for the proceeding that

17 the Flanagan South proceeding involved Enbridge.

18               JUDGE JONES:  Do you understand the

19 question, Mr. Maple?

20        A.       I'm not sure I do at this point.

21               DR. PLIURA:  I'm happy to restate it.

22        Q.       Mr. Maple, you indicated that of the

23 five criteria one of them was trying to determine

24 whether or not Enbridge had addressed and answered
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1 any of the landowner concerns in this issue.  Is

2 that correct?

3        A.       Correct.

4        Q.       And some of the landowners have

5 submitted testimony into this particular case

6 concerned about non-monetary issues, such as

7 environmental issues, water, potential spills.  Are

8 you generally aware of that?

9        A.       Can you point me to the spot in the

10 testimony where they expressed a concern about

11 that?

12        Q.       It's in the -- they're in the filings

13 that have been submitted in this material.  I don't

14 have it in front of me at this point.  But for the

15 sake of this question, assume that there have been

16 materials -- or, is it your belief that nobody has

17 any concerns about environment in this particular

18 case?

19               JUDGE JONES:  There's too many

20 questions going on there, I'm afraid.

21               DR. PLIURA:  That's correct.

22               JUDGE JONES:  I wouldn't really care if

23 it weren't for the fact we keep encountering a lot

24 of objections and responses and delays and
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1 rephrased questions.  At some point here we have to

2 make some progress.

3               Do you have some citations to the

4 testimony that you were referring to?  If you can

5 point to that, that would be one place to go next.

6               DR. PLIURA:  The citations would be the

7 filings of the five landowners that have been made

8 in the -- this ICC proceeding, 13-446.

9               JUDGE JONES:  How about some specific

10 landowners and testimony line numbers or page

11 numbers or something like that?

12               DR. PLIURA:  Given just a moment, I

13 could call that up.  I don't have it at this point

14 in time.

15        Q.       Let me just ask you then, does the ICC

16 believe that any landowners have environmental

17 concerns?

18        A.       I'm not sure.

19        Q.       Okay.  Are you aware of any filings,

20 any evidence in the record at this point in time

21 submitted by the Applicant that addresses

22 environmental concerns, whether it be water

23 pollution, spills, or any other matters, and that

24 those materials have been adequately addressed by
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1 Enbridge?

2        A.       I believe in those five pieces of

3 testimony you were referring to I remember the

4 issue of spills coming up in the testimony.  I

5 don't have the testimony in front of me.  From what

6 I recall of it, it was more of an in-passing

7 comment.  It didn't seem as the landowners had a

8 deep concern about it, nor did they ever really

9 expand on that issue to say what their problems

10 might be.

11        Q.       I think my final question would be:  Is

12 it fair to say that you relied substantially on

13 Enbridge's testimony, whether it be Mr. McKay or

14 Mr. Batis, on whether the landowners were going to

15 be treated fairly?

16               MR. OLIVERO:  I guess I'm going to

17 object, Your Honor.  It's not clear what he means

18 by fairly.  I mean if he wants to use the terms of

19 I guess what is required for purposes of eminent

20 domain, I don't have an issue with that.  But --

21               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

22               DR. PLIURA:  Well, I could ask him

23 maybe before -- a prelude to that or foundational

24 question.
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1        Q.       What is it that the ICC wants to make

2 sure of that the landowners are treated properly?

3 What word would you use?  Would you use the word

4 fairly or how would you describe the desire that

5 the ICC wants to see with regard to treatment of

6 landowners?

7               MR. OLIVERO:  Again, Your Honor, I'm a

8 little confused on the question.  If that's just

9 for purposes of determining whether or not they

10 were -- the Applicant made reasonable attempts to

11 acquire the property for purposes of eminent

12 domain, then I don't have a problem with that.  But

13 I guess in terms of just this generic question of

14 fairly or properly or that I think is a little

15 misleading in terms of this proceeding.

16               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

17               DR. PLIURA:  Well, again, I'm just

18 trying -- I don't want to bog this down.  I'm

19 trying just to come to an understanding of --

20        Q.       It sounds like, Mr. Maple, we've went

21 through that you've indicated it's your belief that

22 Enbridge should be granted eminent domain; correct?

23        A.       That's correct.

24        Q.       And does the ICC, though, want to make
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1 sure that the landowners have been treated, whether

2 it's through negotiations or discussions or

3 communications, in a proper way?

4        A.       I think what the Commission wants is

5 these five criteria in my testimony to be met.

6        Q.       Okay.  Just one follow-up question to

7 that.  Are you aware of the exhibit where Enbridge

8 has submitted in this particular case a list of all

9 the different communications that it has had with

10 landowners?

11        A.       Yes.

12        Q.       Okay.  Did you do any independent

13 verification other than that document to determine

14 what actually those communications consisted of

15 with any specificity?

16        A.       No, I did not.

17               DR. PLIURA:  No further questions.

18               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you,

19 Dr. Pliura.

20               Mr. Turner.

21               MR. TURNER:  Yes, Your Honor, I have

22 just a very few questions, so I'm not going to bog

23 down anything here.  I just wanted to, if it would

24 please the Court and Counsel, begin with that
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1 explanation.

2                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. TURNER:

4        Q.       Mr. Maple, would it be somewhat

5 accurate to say that one of the primary issues that

6 you addressed in your testimony would relate to the

7 question of good faith and whether Enbridge

8 exercised good faith in negotiations with the

9 landowners that are involved in this case?

10        A.       Yes.

11        Q.       Okay.  Now, in terms of exercising good

12 faith, one of the elements would be making offers

13 that would be consistent with just compensation.

14 Would that be correct?

15        A.       I'm not sure the two are necessarily

16 tied together.

17        Q.       Why?

18        A.       Well, good faith would be more toward

19 the way that the negotiations are handled, the

20 number of contacts, the method of contact, and to a

21 certain extent there would have to be -- I suppose

22 there would have to be a fair offer made.

23        Q.       Okay.  And in resolving the good faith,

24 you considered the testimony of Mr. Batis and his
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1 market study and the values generally that he

2 mentioned in his testimony?

3        A.       I did review that study.

4        Q.       Yes.  Is it your understanding that an

5 offer of just compensation includes consideration

6 of damages to the remainder?

7        A.       I'm not a land expert.  I don't really

8 -- I don't believe I testified on what land values

9 are worth or what criteria goes into determining

10 what a land value is.

11        Q.       Thank you.  I'd like to shift then to

12 the issue -- in argument the Flanagan South

13 proceeding was mentioned and just a question or two

14 about that.  You were instrumental in setting up a

15 series of ICC concerns about safety and matters of

16 the Enbridge Applicant in that case; were you not?

17        A.       Is this the --

18        Q.       Flanagan South.

19        A.       -- 13-0192 docket?

20        Q.       Yes.

21        A.       Okay.  Yes.

22        Q.       And you put together a series of issues

23 that you thought appropriate for Enbridge in that

24 case to meet relative to safety as a condition to
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1 determining whether eminent domain was appropriate

2 in that case?

3        A.       Yes.

4        Q.       Okay.  And is it your opinion that, as

5 was suggested in argument, that those conditions

6 should be adhered to by Enbridge in this case?

7        A.       Yes.

8               MR. TURNER:  No further questions,

9 Judge.

10               JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Mr. Olivero, do

11 you have redirect?

12               MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, could we just

13 have like a short break in order to discuss with

14 Staff whether we will or not?  I have maybe one or

15 two, but I just want to make sure.

16               JUDGE JONES:  How long do you propose?

17               MR. OLIVERO:  Five minutes, if that.

18               MR. FEELEY:  This is John Feeley.  I'm

19 not sure if we're on the record still or not.

20               JUDGE JONES:  We're still on the

21 record.

22               MR. FEELEY:  All right.

23               MR. HOLESTINE:  Your Honor, this is

24 Andy Holestine.  While we're having a short break
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1 here, I'm going to call in on my landline just so I

2 have a better signal.  I just wanted to make the

3 parties aware of that.  Okay?

4               JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  We hereby break

5 for five minutes.

6                      (A recess was taken from

7                      10:49 a.m. until 10:56 a.m.)

8               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

9               Mr. Olivero, is there --

10               MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, Your Honor, we have

11 very brief --

12               JUDGE JONES:  -- redirect?

13               MR. OLIVERO:  -- redirect.

14               MR. BATIS:  Your Honor, this is Joe

15 Batis in the Chicago hearing room.  Mr. Feeley is

16 trying to get the parties together.  He just

17 entered the room.

18               MR. FEELEY:  Yes, Judge, John Feeley.

19 I think they might have gone down to the fifth

20 floor to get a bottle of water or something, so I

21 can track them down.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Who's that?

23               MR. FEELEY:  Mr. Thomas stepped out I

24 think to get a bottle of water for his witness down
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1 on the fifth floor maybe.  I just have to track

2 them down.  I'll let you know when I've got them.

3               Judge, this is John Feeley.  They did

4 go down to the fifth floor, so I expect them to be

5 here -- they've been sent a message, so they'll be

6 on their way up.

7               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

8                      (Discussion off the record.)

9               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

10 We are on the record.

11               Mr. Olivero, do you have some redirect?

12               MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, we do, Your Honor,

13 very brief.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Sorry for the

15 interruption.  Just one -- I'm looking at that

16 Docket Number 13-0192.  That's the Ameren gas rate

17 case.

18               MR. MAPLE:  Yeah.

19               MR. OLIVERO:  Yeah, we were going to

20 clarify that.

21               JUDGE JONES:  Oh, you're going to

22 clarify that on redirect?

23               MR. OLIVERO:  That was the question

24 from Mr. Turner, right, when he was -- you're
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1 referencing that he had cited to it?

2               MR. MAPLE:  Yes.

3               JUDGE JONES:  That was a citation to I

4 think -- attributed to the Flanagan South, but I

5 think it's actually -- I mean that particular

6 number is the Ameren gas rate case.  But anyway,

7 you're going to clarify that --

8               MR. OLIVERO:  Yes.

9               JUDGE JONES:  -- as part of your

10 redirect.

11               MR. OLIVERO:  Yes.

12               JUDGE JONES:  So please go ahead.

13               MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, Your Honor.

14                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

15 QUESTIONS BY MR. OLIVERO:

16        Q.       Mr. Maple, you were asked a number of

17 questions by Mr. Pliura regarding the elements

18 necessary for purposes of granting eminent domain.

19 And when you make these types of evaluations on

20 behalf of Staff, do you ever contact the individual

21 landowners involved?

22        A.       No, we do not.

23        Q.       And how many were involved in this

24 proceeding, the number of tracts?  I think we
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1 agreed it was over 140?

2        A.       That's right.

3        Q.       Did any of the landowners who

4 intervened in this matter contact you directly

5 about any concerns they had?

6        A.       Not to my knowledge.

7        Q.       And then you were asked by Mr. Turner

8 and I believe there was a reference to a docket

9 number regarding a Flanagan docket which I think

10 was identified as 13-0192.  Do you remember what

11 docket you were actually discussing when you

12 responded?

13        A.       Yes, I gave that incorrect cite.  The

14 correct Docket Number is 12-0347.

15        Q.       Okay.  And what was the case name?  Do

16 you remember?

17        A.       That was a Enbridge certificate.

18        Q.       It was a Enbridge one?

19        A.       Yes.

20               MR. OLIVERO:  Okay.  I think that is

21 all we had for redirect.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Olivero.

23 Is there any recross?

24               DR. PLIURA:  Not from -- not from
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1 Pliura Intervenors.

2               MR. TURNER:  None Your Honor, thank

3 you.

4               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

5               Thank you, Mr. Maple.

6                      (Witness excused)

7               JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Thomas, do you have

8 some witnesses -- a witness to call at this time?

9               MR. THOMAS:  I do.  And we will start

10 with Mr. McKay.  And if you want me to proceed, I

11 will proceed directly.

12               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  We will swear

13 in -- we will swear in the witness.

14               Mr. McKay, can you hear me?

15               MR. McKAY:  Yes, I can.

16               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Please raise

17 your right hand to be sworn.

18                  JOHN JOSEPH McKAY,

19 of lawful age, produced, sworn, and examined on

20 behalf of the Petitioner, testifies and says:

21               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

22               All right, Mr. Thomas.

23               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you, Judge.

24
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1                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. THOMAS:

3        Q.       Mr. McKay, will you state your full

4 name for the record?

5        A.       John Joseph McKay.

6        Q.       By whom are you employed?

7        A.       Enbridge.

8        Q.       What is your position there?

9        A.       I am the Manager of Land Services for

10 U.S. Projects.

11        Q.       I'm going to show you two documents.

12 The first is entitled Testimony of John McKay,

13 Manager, Land Services (U.S. Projects) Southern

14 Access Extension Pipeline Project.  It bears the

15 identification Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 1 and is

16 dated and was filed on e-Docket on August 20, 2013.

17 Is Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 1 your initial

18 testimony in this proceeding?

19        A.       Yes, it is.

20        Q.       And do you have any corrections to this

21 document?

22        A.       I do not.

23        Q.       If I were to ask you the same questions

24 that are in this document, would your answers be
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1 the same?

2        A.       Yes, they would.

3        Q.       And are those answers true and correct

4 to the best of your knowledge and belief?

5        A.       Yes, they are.

6        Q.       Let me move then to a second document.

7 This is entitled the Rebuttal Testimony of John

8 McKay, Manager, Land Services (U.S. Projects)

9 Southern Access Extension Pipeline.  It bears the

10 identification Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 3.  It is

11 dated and was filed on e-Docket November 25, 2013.

12 Is this document your rebuttal testimony in this

13 proceeding?

14        A.       Yes, it is.

15        Q.       And are there any corrections to this

16 document?

17        A.       There are not.

18        Q.       And if I were to ask you the questions

19 that are in this document, would your answers be

20 the same?

21        A.       Yes.

22        Q.       And are those answers true and correct

23 to the best of your knowledge and belief?

24        A.       Yes, they are.
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1               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, I would at

2 this time move into admission in the record of this

3 case as evidence Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 1 and

4 Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 3.

5               And I will then tender the -- Mr. McKay

6 for cross-examination.

7               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

8               Is there any response or responses to

9 that motion?

10               DR. PLIURA:  Pliura Intervenors have no

11 objection.

12               JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

13 Enbridge Illinois Exhibits 1 and 3 are admitted

14 into the evidentiary record.  Exhibit 1 is admitted

15 as it was filed on e-Docket on August 20, 2013.

16 Exhibit 3 is admitted as filed on e-Docket on

17 November 25, 2013.

18                      (Enbridge Illinois Exhibits 1 and

19                      3 admitted.)

20               JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura, do you have

21 some questions?

22               DR. PLIURA:  I do have some questions.

23                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

24 QUESTIONS BY DR. PLIURA:
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1        Q.       Mr. McKay, this is Tom Pliura.  Could

2 you hear me okay?

3        A.       I can.

4        Q.       Mr. McKay, approximately how many

5 different landowners to the best of your knowledge

6 are involved in this process where Enbridge is

7 seeking eminent domain authority for its pipeline

8 project?

9        A.       There were initially 148.  We are

10 currently at 127 tracts.

11        Q.       Okay.  Have you personally communicated

12 with the landowners, the 128 landowners?

13        A.       I have.

14        Q.       Okay.  Were you aware that some of the

15 landowners had been represented by legal counsel?

16        A.       Yes, I am aware of that.

17        Q.       Did you make any attempt, Mr. McKay, to

18 communicate directly with the legal counsel of the

19 individuals who are currently represented by

20 counsel or have been represented by legal counsel?

21               MR. THOMAS:  Just so the record is

22 clear, Counsel, are you asking whether he

23 personally did that or --

24               JUDGE JONES:  Could you identify
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1 yourself, please?

2               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah, this is Dale Thomas.

3 My apologies.

4               JUDGE JONES:  I'm sorry, go ahead with

5 your -- with whatever it was you were saying there,

6 Mr. Thomas.

7               MR. THOMAS:  Yes.  What I was saying is

8 I just want Mr. Pliura to make clear whether

9 Mr. McKay personally made those kind of

10 communications or whether he's asking if Enbridge

11 -- whether Enbridge did.

12               DR. PLIURA:  I'm asking whether

13 Mr. McKay personally communicated with anybody.

14               MR. THOMAS:  Okay.

15        A.       I have personally communicated through

16 written correspondence, if you consider that

17 personal communication.

18        Q.       I would, yes.  Which communications are

19 you referring to where you personally communicated

20 with legal counsel?

21        A.       We have provided -- I have provided a

22 signed letter from May 22nd, 2013, which states the

23 extent of our offer, and both landowners and

24 attorneys were notified at that time.
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1        Q.       Did you personally speak to any of the

2 attorneys that have been involved in this matter?

3        A.       No, I have not.

4        Q.       Okay.  Are you generally familiar with

5 the fact that there have been some environmental

6 concerns about Enbridge's project?

7        A.       Generally I am aware that in the

8 written testimony there was some concerns raised,

9 yes.

10        Q.       Can you point to any written

11 documentation that Enbridge has submitted into the

12 record that it addresses environmental concerns

13 such as potential oil spills, water contamination

14 concerns, or any non-monetary concerns?

15               MR. THOMAS:  This is Dale Thomas.  I'm

16 going to object on the grounds that the record as

17 it stands does not show that any of those concerns

18 were communicated to Enbridge before it filed its

19 testimony.

20               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

21               DR. PLIURA:  I'm just asking whether or

22 not he can point to any documentation, regardless

23 of whether they now allege they were aware of any

24 environmental concerns.
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1        Q.       I'm just asking if you can point to any

2 document that's in the record that addresses

3 environmental concerns.

4               JUDGE JONES:  That's probably a

5 slightly different question.  Is there any

6 objection to that question?

7               MR. THOMAS:  If the witness can answer

8 that, I have no objection.

9               JUDGE JONES:  Was that you, Mr. Thomas?

10               MR. THOMAS:  Yes.  I'm sorry, Judge.

11 I'm not quite used to this telephonic means, but I

12 will try and endeavor to be clear about that

13 henceforth.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, are you

15 able to pick up who this is from his voice now?

16               COURT REPORTER:  Yes, I believe so.

17               JUDGE JONES:  Our court reporter is

18 recognizing your voice at this point, so you need

19 not identify yourself each time.  I know it's kind

20 of disruptive in this process whoever it may be.

21 So we will just allow you to proceed without doing

22 that.  And that goes for everybody else, too.  If

23 we have some questions about that, we will deal

24 with them as they arise.
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1               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you, Judge.

2               THE WITNESS:  Mr. Pliura, could you

3 repeat your question, please?

4               DR. PLIURA:  Sure.  Could you read back

5 the question?  Or I can summarize it again.

6        Q.       What I'm trying to ascertain,

7 Mr. McKay, is, can you point to anywhere in the

8 written record of any of the materials that have

9 been submitted into this case filing where Enbridge

10 addresses in any fashion the environmental concerns

11 of landowners, for example, potential water

12 contamination issues, concerns about any oil

13 pipeline spills, or any non-monetary concerns?

14        A.       In rebuttal testimony starting on line

15 259, page 13 of 21, I do address that.

16        Q.       Okay.  Why don't you summarize that?

17 What is that?

18        A.       Would you like me to read the rebuttal

19 testimony?

20        Q.       Just summarize it.  I don't want you to

21 read it.  We don't need to waste time on that.

22               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, I -- I object

23 only on the grounds that this is now overbroad and

24 is really calling for a narrative answer.  The
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1 witness has offered to read, you know, from

2 specific comments made about the environmental

3 concerns, but, you know, a claim that he ought to

4 somehow summarize it, it's just not clear on the

5 record what exactly Mr. Pliura wants.

6               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

7               DR. PLIURA:  I just really want to know

8 what -- what it is that Enbridge has in the record

9 that addresses environmental concerns and how those

10 concerns were addressed for the landowner.  I don't

11 want to sit here and read all of the materials that

12 have already been submitted, for example, in

13 November.  I just want a summary from Mr. McKay.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Well, it's kind of a

15 moving target here when we have objections and then

16 responses sort of rephrase the questions.  And I

17 wouldn't really be too concerned about that except

18 it is a matter under objection.

19               So to try to focus on what the question

20 was that drew the objection, I believe the witness

21 had previously referred to lines 259 through 273 in

22 response to an earlier question.  Counsel is asking

23 the witness to summarize those lines of testimony.

24 That may be one fairly -- potentially fairly
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1 efficient way to move forward in the record.

2 However, I think given that there is objection to

3 that specific question, I don't know that there's

4 really been any -- any real showing made that the

5 witness should be required to summarize, quote

6 unquote, those 14 lines of testimony or whatever

7 that number is.

8               So given the objection, the objection

9 is sustained.  Counsel is free to continue with the

10 line of questioning with a different question

11 certainly.

12               DR. PLIURA:  Sure.

13        Q.       Mr. McKay, could you read into the

14 record the testimony that you submitted, rebuttal

15 lines 259 through 273?

16        A.       Read -- read verbatim?

17        Q.       Yes.

18               JUDGE JONES:  What's the purpose of

19 just having that read in, though?

20               DR. PLIURA:  So I can cross-examine him

21 about that.

22               JUDGE JONES:  You can cross-examine him

23 based on the -- are you saying the only way you can

24 cross him is to actually have him read that?  If
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1 you're saying that that's what you need to have

2 done, we'll --

3               DR. PLIURA:  That's what I need to have

4 done.

5               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Go ahead.

6        A.       Starting on line 259:

7               "Also generically, in creating the

8 testimony Pliura asked questions to which each of

9 the five Pliura Intervenors responded as prompted

10 on the extent to which Enbridge Illinois explained

11 to each of them that Enbridge had had pipeline

12 spills in Kalamazoo, Michigan and Romeoville,

13 Illinois, and how Enbridge Illinois was going to

14 prevent such spills in connection with the Southern

15 Access Extension pipeline.  I understand that these

16 matters were specifically raised with and addressed

17 by the Commission in the certification proceeding

18 for the Flanagan South Pipeline project (Docket

19 12-0347).  In that proceeding, the Commission held

20 that Enbridge Illinois had shown that Enbridge has

21 instituted or is in the process of instituting new

22 practices and procedures as recommended by the

23 National Transportation Safety Board ("NTSB") (on

24 the Michigan spill) designed to prevent a
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1 reoccurrence of the problems experienced there.

2 I would also note that a recent report by the NTSB

3 on the Romeoville spill finds no Enbridge

4 responsibility for the release.  Although I am not

5 a lawyer, to my understanding, because the

6 Commission has previously addressed and decided

7 these matters, these matters are beyond the scope

8 of this proceeding."

9        Q.       Mr. McKay, other than that, other than

10 that testimony which you read between lines 259 and

11 273 of your rebuttal testimony, is there any other

12 information in the record that you're aware of

13 where Enbridge has addressed environmental

14 concerns?

15               MR. THOMAS:  Again, Your Honor, I would

16 object to overbreadth.  If there's a particular

17 type of environmental concern which Mr. Pliura is

18 referring to, I have no problem with that, but just

19 to say environmental concerns broadly, the witness

20 and the questioner may not have the same

21 definition.

22               DR. PLIURA:  I can certainly clarify

23 that by detailing the things such as water

24 contamination or oil spills, crude petroleum spills
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1 such as occurred in Romeoville or Kalamazoo,

2 Michigan.

3        A.       So in your reference to water wells, on

4 line 210, identified as paragraph 3, page 11 of 21,

5 water wells is addressed.

6        Q.       With regards to any reference to

7 Flangan South, how would Flangan South -- the

8 Flangan South project have anything to do with the

9 concerns posed by landowners in this particular

10 project, which is 13-446 -- ICC 13-446?

11        A.       Enbridge's response affects all

12 pipelines, not just specifically the Flangan South

13 project.

14        Q.       Well, Mr. McKay, really what I'm

15 getting at is, isn't the Applicant here Enbridge

16 Pipelines (Illinois), L.L.C. a limited liability

17 company?

18        A.       It is.

19        Q.       Okay.  Isn't the Flangan South pipeline

20 project a project other than one that's being

21 proposed by Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C.?

22        A.       It is.

23        Q.       Okay.  Is there any document in the

24 record anywhere that suggests or guarantees that
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1 any company other than Enbridge Pipelines L.L.C.

2 will back or guarantee cleanup of this particular

3 pipeline project in the event that a spill or

4 contamination would occur?

5               MR. THOMAS:  Again, I'm going to

6 object.  I don't know what is meant by background

7 and other phrases used there, if you can just

8 clarify.  Are you asking whether there's any

9 document in the record that this entity here

10 Enbridge Illinois -- Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C.

11 will follow the same procedures as demanded by the

12 Commission in the Flanagan South case?  Is that

13 your question?

14               DR. PLIURA:  No, not really.

15        Q.       And I don't want to get bogged down

16 with this, but obviously Enbridge Pipelines

17 (Illinois) L.L.C. is a limited liability company

18 the financial wherewithal of which is unknown at

19 present.  For the sake of argument, the Kalamazoo

20 River pipeline spill, there have been various

21 public concerns that the spill cost in excess of

22 $450 million in cleanup, or that's projected.  One

23 of the concerns that landowners have in the state

24 is whether or not Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois)
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1 L.L.C. would be able to back or guarantee a cleanup

2 if in fact it's not worth that much.  And so I'm

3 just trying to find out is there anything in the

4 record that suggests that Enbridge, the parent

5 company, or any company other than Enbridge

6 Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C. would be able to step

7 in and be obligated for the cleanup?

8        A.       I am not aware of anything in the

9 record.

10        Q.       Okay.  Let's move on.  The documents

11 that Enbridge has submitted with regards to

12 communications to the landowners, were some of

13 those communications just fliers or letters mailed

14 out generally to landowners?

15        A.       Some were, yes.

16        Q.       With regards to phone calls that were

17 made, were some of those phone calls just left on

18 voicemail or were actual communications encountered

19 where landowners spoke with the Enbridge

20 representative?

21        A.       I'm sure there is a mix of both.

22        Q.       Do you have any documentation to

23 suggest the call duration of any phone calls that

24 were made?
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1        A.       No.

2        Q.       Do you have any documentation to

3 suggest whether or not even calls were connected or

4 whether busy signals were reached or answering

5 machines were reached?

6        A.       We do have documentation that details

7 the type of contact that was made, yes.

8        Q.       And in regards to that contact, is

9 there any detail as to whether or not actual busy

10 signals were made or an answering machine was

11 contacted?

12        A.       Some of our contact reports would

13 contain information stating that a voicemail was

14 left.

15        Q.       Are any of those documents part of the

16 record in this particular case?

17        A.       Not specific contact reports to my

18 knowledge but the types of contacts and the amount

19 and then the type.

20        Q.       Okay.  With regards -- moving on to the

21 valuation, are you aware of any studies showing

22 that a pipeline such as the one that Enbridge is

23 proposing can cause crop yield reduction?

24        A.       I am not aware of any studies that
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1 provide that information.

2        Q.       Did you do or did Enbridge do any crop

3 yield studies from central or southern Illinois in

4 determining land values for offers made to

5 landowners?

6        A.       We -- we do market studies, if that's

7 what you're referring to.

8        Q.       I'm talking about crop yield.

9        A.       Not -- well, crop yield can influence

10 the value of the property from a market perspective

11 based on my experience.

12        Q.       I'll re-ask the question.  Did you do

13 any crop yield studies?  Did Enbridge do any crop

14 yield studies?

15        A.       Not -- not to my knowledge specifically

16 related to crop yields.

17        Q.       Did Enbridge do any analysis for

18 revenue losses for landowners who have a presence

19 of a pipeline across their farm ground?

20        A.       Not specifically for this project, but

21 based on my experience that does not exist.

22        Q.       Did Enbridge do any studies on soil

23 compaction related to pipelines and its effect on

24 crop yields?
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1        A.       No.

2        Q.       Did Enbridge do any studies on the

3 effects of pipeline on the ground recharge, water

4 recharge in areas where the ground will not freeze

5 and thaw because of the pipeline and how this might

6 affect crop yields?

7        A.       No.

8        Q.       Does Enbridge understand why landowners

9 who are farmers might be reluctant to have a

10 pipeline across their farm ground?

11               MR. THOMAS:  I object on the grounds

12 that that's contrary to the record.

13               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

14               DR. PLIURA:  I -- I'm not saying what

15 is or isn't contrary in the record.  It's a just

16 simple question, does Enbridge understand why

17 landowners might be reluctant?

18               MR. THOMAS:  The problem is that the

19 record on the status doesn't show landowners being

20 reluctant and what reluctance means is unclear.  If

21 you have a specific type of concern that your five

22 people have filed testimony on, that's fine, but to

23 suggest and imply that there's a general feeling

24 among landowners they don't want the pipeline on
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1 their land when in fact the vast majority of people

2 have already entered into easement agreements with

3 the company is contrary to the record.

4               DR. PLIURA:  I stand by my question.

5               JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, could you

6 read the question back, please?

7                      (The reporter read the last

8                      question.)

9               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, I'm having

10 trouble hearing the reporter.

11                      (The reporter read the last

12                      question.)

13               JUDGE JONES:  If the witness

14 understands the question and can answer it, I will

15 allow the question.

16        A.       Yes.  I think what I would say is that

17 any concerns that somebody has, a farmer brings to

18 us, we attempt to resolve that concern.

19        Q.       With regards to the proposed route

20 across landowners, is it correct to say that

21 Enbridge has changed the route of the pipeline as

22 what was proposed in 07-446 as compared to 13-446?

23        A.       I would like further clarification on

24 changing the route, because the route has not
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1 changed on specific properties.

2        Q.       Well, as an example, Mr. McKay, I was

3 down in Shelby County, I was down in Fayette County

4 on Friday, and I viewed and inspected the proposed

5 pipeline route.  And is it true that Enbridge has

6 changed the route of the pipeline from what was

7 originally proposed in 07-446 as compared to

8 13-446?

9        A.       Could you -- the reference to the

10 numbers, could you be more specific on what those

11 are so I know what your comparison is?

12        Q.       Well, there was a project that applied

13 for eminent domain submitted by Enbridge Pipelines

14 (Illinois) and it was ICC Project 07-446, and it

15 was granted a certificate of -- to proceed with the

16 pipeline, but it was denied eminent domain status.

17 This filing, filing 13-446, basically now asks for

18 eminent domain over certain landowners and

19 specifically I think there was 148.  Those are two

20 -- two projects that have been filed with the ICC.

21 And my question is, isn't it true that the project

22 route has changed between the two projects?

23               MR. THOMAS:  I'm going to object, first

24 off, as he characterizes the record to say that
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1 there are two different projects.  They are the

2 same project.

3               The second problem is, it's just

4 unclear whether you're asking -- we're in an

5 eminent domain proceeding.  Are you asking whether

6 any of the tracts that are subject to this

7 proceeding are on a route different than was

8 proposed?  Is that what you're asking?

9               DR. PLIURA:  Well, that -- that's

10 pretty much a good summary of the question, yes.

11        A.       For the tracts that are subject to this

12 hearing the route has not changed.

13        Q.       What about the tracts that are subject

14 -- that are not subject to this hearing?

15               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I object on the

16 grounds that's outside the scope of the hearing.

17               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

18               DR. PLIURA:  Well, I think it's a

19 related response.  Certainly I'm going to follow up

20 with whether or not the route has been changed with

21 regards to landowners that are the subject of this

22 proceeding, but, you know, I stand by it.  I think

23 it's a relevant question to these proceedings.

24               MR. THOMAS:  Well, again, Enbridge has



134

1 no problem if you want to ask about route changes

2 with respect to -- and the landowners that are

3 subject to this proceeding, but I do object that it

4 is outside the bounds of this proceeding to start

5 asking questions about other proceedings.

6               JUDGE JONES:  At this point I have not

7 heard an explanation as to why the line of

8 questioning about those routes -- about routes with

9 respect to parcels which are not the subject of

10 this proceeding would be appropriate line of

11 questioning.  Or to put it another way, I really

12 have not heard an adequate explanation of why that

13 line of questioning that's being objected to is

14 relevant.  So without prejudice to further

15 questions being asked, the objection is sustained.

16        Q.       Okay.  With regards to the landowners

17 that are involved in this eminent domain

18 proceeding, has Enbridge determined to alter the

19 pipeline route in any way from what was originally

20 approved by the ICC in 07-446?

21        A.       No.

22        Q.       Are you aware of any property sales or

23 subdivisions of property between the original

24 filing and today?
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1        A.       I am personally not aware.

2        Q.       If a landowner who was now subject to

3 these eminent domain proceedings was not an owner

4 of the land when 07-446 was filed or heard, how did

5 Enbridge inform the landowner -- the new landowners

6 that are now subject to these proceedings, how did

7 Enbridge inform them of their rights under the ICC

8 Eminent Domain Act?

9               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I object that

10 there's no foundation.  There's been no

11 establishment that in fact there's any one of the

12 people who are on the list who in fact -- and those

13 tracts for which ownership has changed.  If you can

14 provide that, that's fine.  But otherwise, there's

15 no foundation for it.

16        Q.       Well, are there landowners, Mr. McKay,

17 that -- that were not part of the 07-446

18 proceedings that are now subject to eminent domain?

19        A.       That's possible, yes, because some time

20 has elapsed.

21        Q.       And did Enbridge make any efforts to

22 deal with those individuals differently than

23 individuals who'd been given a chance to appeal or

24 contest or object to the original 07-446 filing?
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1        A.       We would have communicated in the

2 summer of 2012 that we are readdressing the

3 pipeline project, and we would have made reference

4 in communications at that time to the previous work

5 that was done in '07.

6        Q.       Were any materials different given to

7 landowners who are new owners that were not part of

8 the 07-446 proceedings?  Were there any new or

9 different materials given to them as opposed to the

10 individuals who were involved in that proceeding?

11        A.       They would have received similar

12 materials.

13        Q.       So is it correct to say that there

14 weren't any different materials given?

15        A.       That would be correct.

16        Q.       Did Enbridge -- in coming to a

17 determination of any non-monetary concerns, did

18 Enbridge factor in the spills at Romeoville and

19 Kalamazoo, Michigan, when setting any land values?

20               MR. THOMAS:  I object.  It's -- again,

21 those -- part of the problem here is the witness

22 has testified that -- already that land market

23 studies were done.  That's in the record.  The type

24 of thing that Mr. Pliura is now talking about, land
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1 value, it's not clear whether he's talking about

2 the study or whether he's talking about appraisals

3 or exactly what he's talking about these spills

4 should have factored into.  I just have a real

5 problem with the question.

6               JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura?

7               DR. PLIURA:  Well, I'm just trying to

8 understand and delve into this market study

9 specifically with regards to any valuation -- was

10 any valuation given for spills or the potential for

11 spills such as occurred in Romeoville or Kalamazoo,

12 Michigan.

13               MR. THOMAS:  The problem I have, Your

14 Honor, with the question is that the studies --

15 first of all, there's a witness who did the studies

16 who will be available for cross-examination, and

17 that question is probably more properly directed to

18 him.

19               But what we're talking about here based

20 upon what's already in this record are studies of

21 actual sales of property.  We're not talking about

22 some independent on top of that valuation process

23 in which, you know, spills or something would

24 occur.  None of those properties that were being
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1 looked at were subject to spills.  So I just don't

2 understand the question.

3               JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura, do you still

4 want to ask it of this witness or do you want to

5 wait until the next witness?

6        Q.       Well, do you know whether any valuation

7 was given to the threat or worry or concern about

8 potential spills?

9        A.       No valuation -- I'm not sure what your

10 definition of valuation is.  We've done studies to

11 date, not actual valuations.  We would use the

12 studies to determine the different types of

13 properties that the pipeline crosses in the various

14 counties and townships and come up with, you know,

15 our offers based on those studies.

16        Q.       Did any of the offers or proposals to

17 the landowners in the 148-plus tracts involve the

18 concept of damage to the remainder when negotiating

19 easements?

20        A.       No, they did not.

21        Q.       Why does Enbridge not -- well, does --

22 let me rephrase that.

23               Does Enbridge ever offer to landowners

24 compensation based on damage to the remainder?
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1        A.       None of the projects that I am aware of

2 that I have been involved with with Enbridge and

3 based upon my experience would have had damages to

4 the remainder.  So, therefore, based on my

5 experience, the answer would be no.

6        Q.       Is it -- did Enbridge offer individuals

7 across the property a set amount or was it based on

8 individual tracts of property based on the

9 uniqueness of their property?

10        A.       We would have based our offers based on

11 similarly situated properties.  Those similarly

12 situated properties would have received similar

13 compensation.

14        Q.       When you say similarly situated, are

15 you talking about for pipeline property or for

16 property that is just similarly situated but not

17 pipeline property?

18        A.       We would base our offers on market

19 value for a specific location for a specific type

20 of property, like ag land.

21        Q.       Well, does Enbridge when it takes

22 valuation into concern in negotiations, does it

23 ever look at historically what has been paid to

24 landowners in similar pipeline cases?
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1        A.       We would look at if Enbridge had other

2 property -- or, other projects in the area and take

3 that into consideration.  But based on my

4 experience, no other pipeline company pays 125

5 percent for the -- of the market value for an

6 easement.

7        Q.       How do you deal with the landowner that

8 disagrees that his property is being assessed a

9 valuation by your particular land valuation people?

10 What's the process for negotiation?

11               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, I apologize.

12 I don't like to keep objecting to this.  Could I

13 have a standing objection to his use of the word

14 valuation?  Because the witness has made clear that

15 it is based upon studies.  This is not a valuation

16 process as Mr. Pliura seems to be suggesting, and I

17 object to the use of that term.  If he wants to ask

18 the witness what is done and so forth, that's fine.

19               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

20               DR. PLIURA:  Well, I just -- I go back

21 to the five -- the five points that the prior

22 witness talked about, Mark Maple, and whether

23 comparable offers were made.  And I don't want to

24 get caught up on the words valuation versus market
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1 study.  I'm just trying to move quickly through

2 this.

3               MR. THOMAS:  Just so the record is

4 clear, I mean valuations have a -- suggest

5 appraisals, and the record is clear that these are

6 not based upon appraisals.  Appraisals would happen

7 if you have condemnation.  So if you don't use the

8 word valuation, I'm fine.  You can inquire away all

9 you want about the studies and how the process of

10 negotiation works, no problem at all.  But I do

11 object to your use of the word valuation.

12               DR. PLIURA:  Okay.  Well, whenever I

13 said valuation, just insert the word studies, the

14 studies that had been done.  How is it --

15               MR. THOMAS:  That's fine.

16               DR. PLIURA:  Maybe I just need to

17 restart.

18        Q.       I think I'm almost done with you,

19 Mr. McKay.  I apologize.  Did Enbridge submit any

20 actual exhibits or documents that reflected the

21 actual details of the status of the negotiations or

22 communications that it had with each property

23 owner?

24        A.       Again, we provided general documents
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1 that show the type of conversations, not specific,

2 other than to -- in the rebuttal testimony to

3 answer some of the questions from the intervenors'

4 written testimony.

5        Q.       Did Enbridge provide any documentation

6 whatsoever that tracked the type of concerns that

7 each landowner had or might have had, whether they

8 be monetary or non-monetary?  Was there any

9 categorization as to one landowner having

10 non-monetary, say environmental concerns, versus

11 monetary concerns?

12        A.       No, not to my knowledge.

13        Q.       Would Enbridge agree that some of the

14 landowners are elderly?

15               MR. THOMAS:  So the record is clear,

16 are you talking about some of the landowners among

17 the 148, the ones subject to this proceeding?

18               DR. PLIURA:  Yes.

19               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

20        A.       I'm not sure what your definition of

21 elderly is.  I have a 91-year-old father and I

22 don't consider him elderly.

23        Q.       Okay.  Well, does Enbridge then not

24 make any distinction between dealing with a
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1 91-year-old individual as compared to a 40-year-old

2 individual?

3        A.       When we meet with landowners, we do

4 that under the utmost respect and we try to take

5 into consideration any concerns they would have.

6 And the distinction between age is normally not one

7 of those factors from my experience, but we would

8 be respectful to each and every landowner that we

9 meet with.

10               DR. PLIURA:  I don't have any other

11 questions.

12               JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you, Dr.

13 Pliura.

14               Mr. Turner, do you have cross

15 questions?

16               MR. TURNER:  Yes, I do, Your Honor.

17                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. TURNER:

19        Q.       Mr. McKay, I'd like to ask you just a

20 few questions about the beginning of your

21 testimony.  Are you a Canadian citizen?

22        A.       I am not.

23        Q.       Under question 3 -- the answer to

24 question 3 of your testimony, you try to flesh out
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1 your responsibilities with Enbridge.  Have you been

2 -- you've been involved in the Enbridge U.S.

3 projects that affect downstate Illinois, all of

4 them in the past -- since you've been employed

5 there; is that correct?

6        A.       Could you be more specific regarding --

7        Q.       Okay.  Well, as you know, I only know

8 about two of them, but were you involved in

9 anything relating to the proceeding in 07 --

10 07-0446?

11        A.       I was not.  I was employed by Enbridge

12 at that time but not working specifically on that

13 project.

14        Q.       However, since that time you've updated

15 your knowledge about that proceeding; haven't you?

16        A.       Yes.

17        Q.       Okay.  You talk about the teams at

18 Enbridge that you're involved with.  I'm not

19 wanting any real company secrets or anything, but

20 generally describe what teams you're talking about

21 and how you are involved with them in terms of

22 coordination or communication.

23        A.       Okay.  Basically, Enbridge has

24 different entities that, you know, do these
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1 particular pipeline projects, just like Enbridge --

2 just like the one we're talking about today,

3 Enbridge Pipelines (Illinois) L.L.C.  We've also

4 made reference to the Enbridge Pipelines (FSC),

5 Flangan South.  Two different entities, different

6 teams working on those projects.  And I basically

7 provide oversight for the acquisition activities on

8 those respective projects.  There are others as

9 well, but those are the two -- two of those that

10 I'm currently involved with in Illinois, as well as

11 others.

12        Q.       Do you provide oversight of Doug Aller

13 (phonetic) and Mark Kerwin (phonetic)?

14        A.       No.  Doug Aller is -- has retired, but

15 I have not provided oversight with him in the past,

16 nor do I provide oversight of Mark Kerwin.

17        Q.       With regard to your testimony, wouldn't

18 it be correct to say that you believe that the

19 statements you've made are well grounded in fact

20 and also well grounded to the extent of your

21 understanding of law?

22        A.       Well, I am not -- I'm not an attorney,

23 so regarding the law part, I guess I can't comment

24 on that one.  But as far as the first part of your
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1 question I would say yes.

2        Q.       So with regard to your testimony then,

3 you diligently considered your testimony and your

4 goal was to have the statements made in your

5 testimony well grounded in fact?

6        A.       Yes.

7        Q.       Okay.  I'd like to shift then to the

8 petition in this case for eminent domain.  Isn't it

9 true that the petition is actually a part of your

10 testimony?

11        A.       It is.

12        Q.       And the same question would apply to

13 it.  Before you verified the petition in this case,

14 you came to the conclusion in good faith that the

15 allegations in that petition were well grounded in

16 fact?

17        A.       Could you restate the question?  You

18 cut out just briefly there, so I'm not -- I didn't

19 pick up the entire part.

20        Q.       Isn't it true that prior to verifying

21 the petition in this case, the 13-0446, that you

22 made a good faith determination that the factual

23 assertions in the petition were well grounded in

24 fact?
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1        A.       Yes.

2        Q.       Okay.  I'd like to then direct you to

3 page 13 of your testimony and there's a footnote

4 there.

5               MR. THOMAS:  For the record, are you

6 talking about the direct testimony?

7               MR. TURNER:  Yes.

8               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

9               MR. TURNER:  No, I'm talking -- I'm

10 sorry, I'm talking about page 13 -- thanks for

11 correcting me.  I'm talking about page 13 of the

12 petition.

13        Q.       Do you have the petition there with

14 you?

15        A.       I do.

16        Q.       Okay.  If you'd look on page 13 and the

17 footnote, I have a question about that.  Are you

18 there?  Tell me when you're there.

19        A.       I'm there.

20        Q.       Okay.  That footnote has to do with a

21 thousand-foot setback?

22        A.       Yes.

23        Q.       And what is your understanding about

24 the obligation of your company with respect to
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1 that?

2        A.       Well, my understanding is when this --

3 the initial work took place in '07 that the

4 setbacks were 400 feet and part of the reason why

5 we rerouted the pipeline in that area is that those

6 setbacks had changed.  So we wanted to make sure

7 that we accommodated that increase in setback.

8        Q.       Okay.  So is it your -- is it the

9 position of your company then that that setback

10 applies to the construction of the Southern Access

11 Extension pipeline?

12               MR. THOMAS:  I'm going to object that

13 that's overbroad.  In other words, are -- Mr.

14 Turner, are you asking whether it's the position of

15 the company that it applies as to what he's

16 addressing on page 13 or are you making a blanket

17 statement as your question suggested for the entire

18 extension project?

19               MR. TURNER:  The latter.

20               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I object that it's

21 overbroad, but the witness can answer if he

22 understands it.

23        A.       I'm not sure I understand your

24 question, Mr. Turner.
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1        Q.       Okay.  Let me -- let me try to state it

2 in a different way.

3               In forming the route for the Southern

4 Access Extension pipeline, were -- based on your

5 understanding, were the considerations referred to

6 in that footnote at the bottom of page 13 of the

7 petition considered by your company?

8        A.       Yes, they were.  In that area, yes.

9        Q.       And when you say in that area, what are

10 you referring to?

11        A.       The location of the pipeline in

12 reference to the Fayette Company water wells,

13 Fayette Water Company community water supply.

14        Q.       Was this footnote considered with

15 respect to any other area?

16        A.       I am not aware of any other areas where

17 this applies or where it was considered.

18        Q.       Okay.  Do you have a general

19 understanding of why the thousand-foot setback

20 requirement exists?

21        A.       Not -- not right -- I mean this is --

22 this is a zoning requirement, so it was determined

23 by I would assume a zoning authority.  So I don't

24 want to speak on their behalf.
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1        Q.       Okay.  Do you believe it has to do with

2 safety?

3               MR. THOMAS:  Objection, calls for

4 speculation.  The witness has testified that he

5 assumed it was made by a zoning authority.  The

6 question would require him to speculate as to what

7 the zoning authority had in mind.

8               MR. TURNER:  I'm asking -- excuse me,

9 Your Honor.  I'll withdraw that question.

10        Q.       Let me ask it this way:  Do you

11 personally have an understanding about whether the

12 thousand-foot setback pertains to safety and how

13 close your pipeline should be to water wells?

14        A.       I don't personally have an opinion on

15 that.  Again, it's based on zoning and that's what

16 I -- I know.

17        Q.       Also on page 13 of the petition there's

18 reference made to relocating the route based on new

19 residential growth in certain areas.  The question

20 I have about that is:  What factors did Enbridge

21 consider in a general way to do the modifications

22 to the route?

23        A.       In a general way, it would have to do

24 with the original -- you're referring to, I assume,
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1 the Luxor easement, and those rights were

2 established in 1939, so there were some

3 developments along the pipeline where we chose

4 through the routing procedure to modify the route.

5        Q.       And what considerations were considered

6 in the modification that was chosen?

7        A.       I would say that it's -- it's mostly

8 due to population density.

9        Q.       And why would population density be a

10 consideration?

11        A.       The number of homes that the -- in

12 close proximity, the way that we have to construct

13 pipelines safely, those are all concerns.  So the

14 construction, operation, maintenance of the

15 pipeline.

16        Q.       Was the rerouting -- did the rerouting

17 involve moving the route further away from

18 residential areas?

19        A.       In some cases, yes.

20        Q.       Okay.  And, well, the cases I'm

21 referring to and what I'm really asking you about

22 is there on page 13 of the petition.  In the

23 instances described on page 13 of the petition was

24 the rerouting the moving of the route away from
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1 residential areas?

2        A.       Okay.  Could you repeat your question

3 then?

4        Q.       Sure.  I'm asking now about the

5 assertions contained on page 13 of the petition.

6 And the specific question is:  When the new route

7 was established, did that new route -- was it moved

8 away from new residential areas?

9        A.       Mercer, I'm sorry, you cut out again

10 through part of your question there.  So, I'm

11 sorry, but if you could repeat that one more time.

12        Q.       You betcha.  The new route, the new

13 routing referred to on page 13 of the application,

14 did that involve moving the route away from new

15 residential areas?

16        A.       If you could specifically point on page

17 13 so I know what you are specifically referencing,

18 that would be helpful.

19        Q.       For example, on line 4.

20        A.       Should I just read this?  Would that be

21 helpful?

22        Q.       No, I can read it and I have read it.

23 What I'm asking is:  Did the rerouting involve

24 moving the route further away from new residential
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1 areas?

2        A.       Yes, that is what is shown in that

3 location.  Yes.

4               MR. THOMAS:  At this point let me

5 interpose an objection unless Mr. Turner is able to

6 tie this line of questioning to the issue in this

7 case, which is whether it's necessary for the

8 identified tracts to have condemnation authority.

9 The pages here that he's asking about and the

10 questions he's asking relate to the Luxor rights,

11 which were already litigated, and none of those

12 particular ones are part of this condemnation

13 proceeding, so I'm not sure where this is going.

14               JUDGE JONES:  I don't think we have

15 actually a question pending, so --

16               MR. THOMAS:  I just -- my only

17 question, Your Honor, is whether -- and this is a

18 question directed to Mr. Turner, whether he's

19 intending to link this up in some fashion to the

20 question in this proceeding.  Because if he's not,

21 then I'm going to object I guess is what I'm

22 saying.

23               MR. TURNER:  The basic link has to do

24 with the fact that it's part of the petition for
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1 eminent domain and it's part of his testimony, and

2 I'm just simply asking him a few simple questions

3 to explain to me both the petition and the

4 testimony.

5               MR. THOMAS:  Well, so far I have not

6 objected to your questions and the answers.

7               MR. TURNER:  Okay.

8               MR. THOMAS:  But again, at some point

9 -- and this may be in the petition, just a witness

10 may have, for example, their credentials in a piece

11 of testimony, but at some point this surely needs

12 to be tied into the question here, which is whether

13 under 8-509 it's necessary for the company to have

14 eminent domain authority to complete the pipeline.

15 And I'm not sure where all this ties into that.

16               MR. TURNER:  I just have two questions

17 about it that I haven't gotten answered here.

18               MR. THOMAS:  Okay.

19               MR. TURNER:  So be patient with me,

20 please.

21               MR. THOMAS:  Okay.

22        Q.       I want to know if I ---if, Mr. McKay,

23 you know the distance that Enbridge moved the new

24 route away from the new residential areas?
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1        A.       I do not specifically know the distance

2 in that location.  I do know that it was moved to

3 avoid the residences stated in the petition.

4        Q.       Do you know in general the distance?

5 In other words, I'm not asking you a specific

6 number of feet but rather what standards were used

7 with regard to rerouting?

8               MR. THOMAS:  Objection, asked and

9 answered.

10               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

11               MR. TURNER:  Well, that question hasn't

12 been answered yet.

13               JUDGE JONES:  I think the question --

14               MR. THOMAS:  You --

15              JUDGE JONES:  I'm sorry.  Arguments

16 have been -- I deem the arguments concluded.

17               I think the question is a little

18 different than the one posed before.  So the

19 objection is -- is sustained.  We would ask the

20 witness to answer the question if he understands it

21 and can answer it.

22               MR. THOMAS:  That's fine, Your Honor.

23        A.       Mr. Turner, could you repeat the

24 question one more time so I'm clear what you're
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1 asking?

2        Q.       I'll try.  I understand based on your

3 testimony you don't know the specific number of

4 feet that the rerouting involved in moving away

5 from the new residential areas, so I'm just trying

6 to see if you happen to know standards for general

7 considerations on what that distance should be when

8 the rerouting occurred.

9        A.       I do not specifically know that there

10 is a standard.

11        Q.       Okay.  I'll move on.  Let me ask you,

12 in your testimony today you referred to studies

13 undertaken by Enbridge.  What were those studies?

14        A.       There have been studies -- there were

15 studies done when the pipeline project originally

16 kicked off in 2006-07 time frame.  Those would have

17 been market studies completed to determine market

18 values of general market per acre values for the

19 respective properties that the pipeline project

20 crosses.  Those studies have been updated since

21 that time.  And those again are based on actual

22 sales of properties of similarly situated

23 properties along the pipeline route.

24        Q.       Were there studies made of any other
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1 areas, such as safety, with respect to the plan for

2 the Southern Access Extension?

3               MR. THOMAS:  I'm going to object that

4 this line would appear to suggest a relitigation of

5 the Commission's determination it was in the public

6 interest for this pipeline to be constructed and

7 operated, which necessarily includes the safety

8 concerns.

9               MR. TURNER:  If it please the Court,

10 brief response.

11               JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

12               MR. TURNER:  Eminent -- the factors to

13 determine -- the factors regarding the award of the

14 power of eminent domain include consideration of

15 the same factors that would have been pertinent in

16 2007 and 2008.  The only difference in this case

17 between those two is you have limited the number of

18 properties over which you are seeking eminent

19 domain.  And I just have a couple of questions

20 about that, no lengthy line here.

21               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, that statement

22 is simply inaccurate.  The proceeding in 2007

23 involved the certification of the pipeline, and

24 whether Enbridge was fit, willing, and able to
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1 construct and operate the pipeline was specifically

2 addressed.  None of that is relevant here to

3 condemnation because that issue has been resolved

4 by the Commission.  The only issue that's

5 resolvable here is whether the company can show

6 that it is necessary for it to have eminent domain

7 authority as to the tracts listed.  Those are just

8 completely separate issues.

9               JUDGE JONES:  Can I have the question

10 read back, Ms. Reporter?  Thank you.

11                      (The reporter read the last

12                      question.)

13               MR. THOMAS:  I think there was a

14 question after that.

15               JUDGE JONES:  Are you saying there was

16 another question after that?

17               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah.  I may be -- I mean

18 I objected to that on the grounds that that issue

19 of safety had been resolved by the Commission with

20 certification.  Then there was a back and forth.  I

21 may have misheard, but that's what I recall.

22               JUDGE JONES:  I'm not sure where we are

23 then.

24               MR. THOMAS:  I'm not either.  I
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1 apologize, your Honor.

2               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  But what do

3 you suggest happen next, Mr. Thomas?

4               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I guess the extent

5 -- what I think I heard -- and, Mr. Turner, you can

6 correct me if you think I misheard this -- if the

7 justification for inquiring into safety --

8               JUDGE JONES:  Wait a minute.  We don't

9 want to reargue this.  I'm just trying to -- you

10 seemed to suggest that the question read back

11 perhaps wasn't the one that was on the table

12 subject to the objection.

13               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah.  No, I think it is.

14 I'm sorry.  I apologize.  I was remembering the

15 back and forth after that, but I think it all did

16 go back to that question.  So I stand corrected,

17 Your Honor.

18               JUDGE JONES:  I'm going to sustain that

19 objection without prejudice to Mr. Turner

20 continuing the line of questioning if he wants to

21 ask some different questions as part of that line.

22 I think there was just too much reliance in Mr.

23 Turner's argument about the issues being the same

24 as the ones in the certification docket.  That's
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1 not to say in this ruling there would not be some

2 -- some common issues there.  That's a question we

3 do not reach.  Some overlap, another question we do

4 not reach.  But I think simply to rely on the

5 issues being the same except that it's just with

6 respect to less parcels or specific parcels I think

7 is probably not a good -- a sound basis for

8 overruling the objection.  So for that reason, the

9 objection is sustained.

10               So, Mr. Turner.

11               MR. TURNER:  Thank you, Judge.

12        Q.       Mr. McKay, with respect to the parcels

13 over which you are seeking eminent domain, have you

14 or Enbridge quantified other than through the work

15 of your expert, Mr. Batis, the impact that the line

16 will have on the landowners?

17        A.       I'm not sure what your definition of

18 impact is, Mr. Turner.

19        Q.       Okay.  That would be any consideration

20 other than what was covered by Mr. Batis in his

21 report.

22        A.       We -- we base the offer on a per acre

23 basis based on the studies that we determined.  We

24 also take into consideration, you know, the other



161

1 factors that are maybe unique to a particular piece

2 of property.

3        Q.       Example, please, of other factors.

4        A.       An example would be ornamental trees

5 versus what I'd maybe called random growth or

6 natural growth trees.  One property would have

7 ornamental trees.  They would potentially be

8 compensated more than a property that didn't have

9 trees or had what we'd call natural growth trees.

10        Q.       Are there any other examples that you

11 can recall here quickly?

12        A.       Proximity to residences, the types of

13 properties, you know, the ag land versus

14 residential.  Similarly situated land will be

15 compensated appropriately.

16        Q.       In your testimony today you said that

17 you're not aware since you've been at Enbridge of

18 one of the pipelines creating damages to the

19 remainder.  And just very briefly, what is your

20 understanding of the term damages to the remainder?

21        A.       My understanding that is something that

22 is determined in an eminent domain proceeding.

23        Q.       Do you have an understanding about

24 whether damages to the remainder is a part of just
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1 compensation?

2        A.       Just compensation, again based on my

3 experience, is part of an eminent domain proceeding

4 and damages to the remainder would fall into that

5 same category.  They could be a subset of just

6 compensation in an eminent domain proceeding.

7        Q.       How did Enbridge determine its position

8 about damages to the remainder for the Southern

9 Access Extension?

10        A.       Again, based on the testimony I

11 provided, it's my opinion that damages to the

12 remainder do not apply on this project.

13        Q.       Why?  Why -- let me be just a bit more

14 specific.  Why -- why do damages to the remainder

15 not apply in this case?

16               MR. THOMAS:  I'm going to object.  I

17 think the witness has testified now twice that he

18 understands this is an issue to be addressed, if at

19 all, in condemnation proceedings which are before

20 the circuit court.  You know, the -- there is

21 nothing else to discuss I think with respect to

22 this.

23               MR. TURNER:  Your Honor, that's my last

24 question about that.  If I could get an answer to
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1 that, I'll move on.

2               JUDGE JONES:  Do you have any other

3 response to the objection?

4               MR. TURNER:  Well, he's mentioned it in

5 his testimony.  He's the one that volunteered it.

6 I'm -- I'm just probing it just, you know, briefly

7 so I can understand it.

8               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I'll --

9               MR. THOMAS:  He mentioned it --

10               JUDGE JONES:  I'm sorry.  The argument

11 is concluded on that.

12               I will allow the question and I'd ask

13 the witness to answer it if he understands the

14 question and if he can give an answer.

15               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

16        A.       Mr. Turner, I believe that it's not an

17 issue because it does not exist for this project.

18        Q.       My question was, though, why?

19        A.       Based on my experience and the routing

20 of the pipeline and its location, it does not

21 exist.  And we have not seen that -- I have not

22 seen that based on my experience.

23        Q.       Okay.  Was the testimony of Mr. Batis

24 considered or was work of Mr. Batis for Enbridge



164

1 considered in any way in your conclusion about

2 that?

3               MR. THOMAS:  Just for the record, are

4 you referring to Mr. Batis's study that was

5 submitted in the docket?

6               MR. TURNER:  Yes.

7               MR. THOMAS:  And his testimony in this

8 docket?

9               MR. TURNER:  Yes.

10               MR. THOMAS:  Okay.

11        A.       So you're -- are you -- can you ask --

12 could you restate the question again, Mr. Turner?

13 I'm sorry.

14        Q.       Yes.

15        A.       Because you referred to Mr. Batis.

16        Q.       Yes.  Was the work of Mr. Batis which

17 was made evidence in this case, testimony in this

18 case considered by you in reaching the conclusions

19 you've expressed about damages to the remainder?

20        A.       I -- we have used his -- obviously, his

21 studies, and I think they are consistent regarding

22 damages to the remainder.

23        Q.       In the material provided by Enbridge

24 there's reference to the fact that offers to the
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1 landowners were based upon the fee -- fee ownership

2 values for the easement.  Do you know what I'm

3 referring to?

4        A.       I -- I know what fee value is, yes.

5        Q.       Okay.  Then I'll -- by fee value, that

6 means as though you were buying the fee title as

7 opposed to acquiring a right-of-way or an easement

8 for a pipeline.  Is that generally correct?

9        A.       Yes.

10        Q.       And in the event Enbridge is awarded

11 eminent domain in this proceeding, will there be

12 any changes in the way Enbridge then negotiates

13 with landowners and makes offers regarding the

14 value of the right-of-way?

15        A.       We will continue to negotiate with

16 landowners in a consistent manner.

17        Q.       Will Enbridge be changing the value

18 proposed to the landowner from the fee value to

19 some other value?  Such as -- and I'm not trying to

20 trap you here, but such as a value for a

21 right-of-way as opposed to fee value?

22        A.       If you're asking whether appraisals

23 will be completed for eminent domain proceedings,

24 the answer would be yes, and those appraisals would
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1 take into consideration the fact that we are

2 acquiring an easement interest.

3        Q.       Would you concur with the testimony of

4 Mr. Maple this morning that the conditions of the

5 Illinois Commerce Commission imposed upon Enbridge

6 for the award of eminent domain in the Flangan

7 South proceeding should apply with equal force in

8 this proceeding?

9        A.       What conditions are you referring to?

10        Q.       Are you familiar with the concerns

11 raised by Mr. Maple in the Flangan South proceeding

12 about what happened at Marshall, Michigan, and not

13 wanting it repeated in downstate Illinois?

14        A.       Yes, I am familiar with that.

15        Q.       Okay.  Would -- and you remember that

16 Mr. Maple was instrumental in coming up with

17 concerns that Enbridge addressed and represented in

18 that Flangan South proceeding with respect to what

19 happened in Marshall, Michigan?

20        A.       Yes.

21        Q.       And would the -- would it be your

22 understanding then that those same -- the way

23 Enbridge addressed Mr. Maple's concern in that --

24 in the Flangan South proceeding should have -- will
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1 be addressed in a similar fashion in the Southern

2 Access Extension operation?

3        A.       Yes.  I would agree with that, yes.

4        Q.       Okay.  Just a couple more and then I'll

5 be done.

6               In your -- in the petition there's

7 reference made to how long it takes to complete a

8 condemnation action in state circuit court and the

9 timing -- construction timing of the Southern

10 Access Extension pipeline.  Can you comment on for

11 me the general understanding of Enbridge now with

12 regard to those two assertions?  Meaning if

13 Enbridge is successful in obtaining the award of

14 eminent domain, when would it be commencing

15 condemnation actions and generally how long do you

16 think that activity will take?

17        A.       I -- I'm not able to -- I'm not an

18 attorney and I'm not able to speculate on the

19 timing of those proceedings.

20        Q.       Well, was the observation in the

21 petition about how long it took was that

22 speculation?

23        A.       Based on experience from other

24 projects, but this is -- this is, you know, a new
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1 project.

2        Q.       And so you're not aware yourself of any

3 decisions you have made or anyone from Enbridge has

4 made regarding timing of commencement of

5 construction with respect to properties that will

6 become the subject matter of condemnation

7 proceedings?

8        A.       In my testimony I have indicated the

9 construction schedule and the in-service dates of

10 the pipeline.  The construction schedule is

11 anticipated to begin in August of 2014 with an

12 in-service date of Q2, which is quarter 2, of 2015.

13 Obviously, we cannot commence construction unless

14 we have the right to enter onto properties.

15        Q.       Well, I'm not asking you now the

16 legalities of it, but your understanding would be

17 that you can't commence construction on a

18 landowner's property when it's one of the

19 landowners that you are condemning in state circuit

20 court, can you, until that proceeding --

21        A.       Based on my experience, we have had

22 some situations where a landowner has given us

23 approval to go onto their property while an eminent

24 domain proceeding is taking place.
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1        Q.       Okay.  But without that approval, then

2 the eminent domain action would need to be -- a

3 final judgment in the state level would need to

4 occur before you could have access based on your

5 understanding not as a lawyer but just as a

6 representative of Enbridge?

7        A.       With eminent domain there is a point

8 that my understanding -- general understanding is

9 there is a point where possession of the property

10 is obtained through that process.  So, yes,

11 whenever that process works its way out, at that

12 point, whenever the possession date is as

13 determined by the proceeding, that's when we can

14 commence construction.

15               MR. TURNER:  Thank you, Judge.

16               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Turner.

17               Mr. Thomas, do you have any redirect?

18               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah.  If you'd give us

19 about five minutes to go off the record, we'll let

20 you know.

21               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Before we get

22 quite to that point, we are going to go off the

23 record to discuss where we are here.

24                      (Discussion off the record.)
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1               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  We

2 hereby break for ten minutes.

3                      (A recess was taken from

4                      12:32 p.m. until 12:45 p.m.)

5               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

6               Mr. Thomas, do you have another witness

7 to call?

8               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I have two very

9 brief questions of redirect.

10               JUDGE JONES:  Oh, yeah, pardon me.

11 You're right.  I stepped a step, maybe two.

12               MR. THOMAS:  Well, that's all right.

13                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MR. THOMAS:

15        Q.       Mr. McKay, do you recall Mr. Pliura

16 asking the question about Enbridge Pipelines

17 (Illinois) L.L.C. and what type of financial

18 backing they might have if an untoward event such

19 as a spill would occur?

20        A.       Yes.

21        Q.       And what would the answer be to that?

22        A.       The overall Enbridge company would be

23 able to provide the assistance necessary to address

24 that situation.
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1        Q.       And that includes all financial

2 assistance necessary?

3        A.       Yes.

4        Q.       You may recall Mr. Pliura also asked

5 some questions about changes in route that might

6 have been made at any of the properties which are

7 subject to the condemnation request here.  Are you

8 familiar with whatever changes may have occurred

9 with respect to those properties?

10        A.       Yes.

11        Q.       And what kind of changes would be

12 those?

13        A.       They would be minor changes on the same

14 property or adjacent property of the same owner.

15        Q.       And when did -- to your understanding,

16 when did the property owners of the tracts subject

17 to our condemnation request receive notice of the

18 pipeline presence?

19        A.       In 2007.

20               MR. THOMAS:  That's all I have, Your

21 Honor.

22               JUDGE JONES:  What was the year in that

23 answer?

24        A.       2007.
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1               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

2               Recross, Dr. Pliura?

3               DR. PLIURA:  Just a couple of real

4 brief questions on that.

5                 RECROSS-EXAMINATION

6 QUESTIONS BY DR. PLIURA:

7        Q.       If an individual did not own the

8 property in 2007 but is now subject to these

9 eminent domain proceedings because there's been a

10 change in ownership, how is it that that new

11 individual has been given an opportunity in any way

12 to participate in this matter?

13        A.       I believe that's a legal opinion, but

14 they would have been contacted -- whoever the most

15 current owner is would have been contacted and

16 provided information from Enbridge.

17        Q.       When you say provided information,

18 you're talking about just negotiations strictly

19 with relationship to the eminent domain proceeding;

20 correct?

21        A.       Not strictly related to that.  There

22 would be other things.  Any correspondence.  When

23 we restarted the project, like I said previously,

24 in 2012, we sent that initial letter out in the
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1 summer of '12 stating that we were enhancing our

2 efforts to -- in the negotiation process for the

3 project.

4        Q.       Okay.  Well, I'm going to just move on

5 very briefly.  There was some discussion about this

6 valuation versus market studies and --

7               MR. THOMAS:  I'm going to object.

8 That's beyond the scope of my redirect.

9               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

10               DR. PLIURA:  Well, there was discussion

11 about valuation from Mercer Turner's questions

12 but --

13               MR. THOMAS:  But that's not --

14               JUDGE JONES:  Well, let Mr. Pliura

15 finish.  Did you have more to state?

16               DR. PLIURA:  Yeah.  There was just

17 discussion about that, and in the meantime I've

18 gone back to question 19 at page -- question 19,

19 line 282 of Enbridge's Mr. McKay's submission where

20 it talks about fee value, landowners were given fee

21 values.  And then again at page 18, question 27Q.

22 But I just wondered is there a difference

23 between --

24               JUDGE JONES:  Wait a second.
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1 I think there's an objection.

2               MR. THOMAS:  I renew my objection.  My

3 understanding of the proper rules of procedure at

4 the Commission, at least all the time I've

5 practiced, is that recross would be limited within

6 the scope of the redirect.  And certainly I didn't

7 open the door to any of those questions on my

8 redirect.

9               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Response?

10               DR. PLIURA:  I certainly want to follow

11 the rules of the ICC, though I plead ignorant.  I

12 don't know what the Commission has done in this in

13 the past.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Well, the objection is

15 sustained.  I do believe that the -- that current

16 line of questioning does go beyond redirect.

17               Did you have any other --

18               DR. PLIURA:  No.

19               JUDGE JONES:  -- recross?

20               Mr. Turner?

21               MR. TURNER:  If I may.

22                 RECROSS-EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. TURNER:

24        Q.       Mr. McKay, what is the name of the
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1 company that you are referring to in the redirect

2 with respect to responsibility for a spill?

3               MR. THOMAS:  Just so we're clear, by

4 responsibility for the spill what you really mean,

5 I think, Mr. Turner, is financial responsibility if

6 such a spill should occur that, you know, that

7 would be attributable to Enbridge Pipelines

8 (Illinois) L.L.C.; is that correct?

9               MR. TURNER:  Absolutely.

10               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

11               MR. TURNER:  And you've really done a

12 great job in explaining it.  Thank you.

13               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

14        A.       Enbridge Incorporated.

15        Q.       And is that the one that has the

16 headquarters in Calgary?

17        A.       Yes, Enbridge, the main headquarters is

18 in Calgary.

19        Q.       And would your testimony then based on

20 Counsel's observations and clarification of my

21 question apply only to instances when Enbridge was

22 deemed to be causing in some fashion, you know, the

23 future spill?

24        A.       We would respond and be responsible for
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1 cleanup, as we have been in Romeoville as an

2 example.  We would address that and we would worry

3 about the compensation and who's responsible for

4 that after, but we would respond.

5               MR. TURNER:  Thank you, Judge.  No more

6 questions.

7               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Any

8 re-redirect, Mr. Thomas?

9               MR. THOMAS:  No.

10               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  That

11 concludes the questions for Mr. McKay.  Thank you,

12 sir.

13               THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

14                      (Witness excused)

15               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, if people are

16 ready, we can put on our next witness.

17               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  And that is

18 who?

19               MR. THOMAS:  That is Joseph Batis.

20               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Sir, please

21 stand and raise your right hand and be sworn as a

22 witness.

23

24
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1                   JOSEPH E. BATIS,

2 of lawful age, produced, sworn, and examined on

3 behalf of the Petitioner, testifies and says:

4               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

5 seated.

6               THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

7               MR. THOMAS:  Shall I proceed, Your

8 Honor?

9               JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

10               MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.

11                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. THOMAS:

13        Q.       Mr. Batis, would you state your full

14 name for the record?

15        A.       Joseph E. Batis, B-a-t-i-s.

16        Q.       By whom are you employed?

17        A.       Edward J. Batis & Associates,

18 Incorporated.

19        Q.       And what is your position there?

20        A.       I'm the owner of the company.

21        Q.       Let me show you a document which is

22 titled Testimony of Joseph E. Batis, MAI, Real

23 Estate Appraiser and Consultant, Edward J. Batis &

24 Associates, Inc.  It bears the identification of
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1 Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 2, and it is dated August

2 20, 2013, which is also the e-Docket filing date.

3 Is this document your testimony in this proceeding?

4        A.       Yes, it is.

5        Q.       And do you have any corrections to this

6 testimony?

7        A.       No, I do not.

8        Q.       If I were to ask you the same questions

9 that are contained in this testimony, would your

10 answers be the same?

11        A.       Yes.

12        Q.       And are those answers true and correct

13 to the best of your knowledge and belief?

14        A.       Yes.

15               MR. THOMAS:  I move the admission into

16 the record of Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 2 in its

17 entirety.

18               And I tender the witness for

19 cross-examination.

20               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  The motion

21 has been made.  Is there any response to that

22 motion?

23               DR. PLIURA:  No objection by the Pliura

24 Intervenors.
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1               JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

2               At this time let the record show that

3 the motion to admit that testimony is granted.

4 More specifically, the Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 2

5 is admitted into the evidentiary record as filed on

6 e-Docket on August 20, 2013.

7                      (Enbridge Illinois Exhibit 2

8                      admitted.)

9               JUDGE JONES:  I believe there are some

10 cross-examination questions for this witness.  Is

11 that -- do you have some, Dr. Pliura?

12               DR. PLIURA:  I do.

13                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MR. PLIURA:

15        Q.       Mr. Batis, can you hear me okay?

16               MR. THOMAS:  I think it's Batis.

17               DR. PLIURA:  Batis?

18               MR. THOMAS:  Yes.

19        Q.       Mr. Batis --

20        A.       Yes, sir.  Yes, sir, I can hear you

21 fine.

22        Q.       Okay.  In regards to the market study

23 analysis that you prepared, I'm having a little

24 difficulty understanding what the -- what the
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1 purpose of that market study was.  What is the

2 purpose of the market study that you prepared?

3        A.       The purpose of the market study was to

4 provide my client, Enbridge Illinois, with a

5 summary of land sales or land transactions that

6 transpired in the areas near and along the route

7 referred to as the Southern Access Extension, or

8 SAX, pipeline that goes through eight counties in

9 central Illinois.

10        Q.       And other than that, is there any other

11 purpose that you performed this study for?

12        A.       In addition to providing the land

13 values, I was asked to opine or explain the impact

14 of the value of easements in general as they

15 correlate to fee values or the underlying fee

16 values of property.

17        Q.       Did you make any assessment or

18 determination as to the concept of damage to the

19 remainder?

20        A.       Are you now asking with respect to this

21 particular study and testimony?

22        Q.       I'm asking did you -- in your market

23 study did you make any determination based on the

24 concept of damage to the remainder?
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1        A.       I did not include in my land market

2 study any explanation or analysis pertaining to the

3 impact of the proposed pipeline on remainder

4 properties.

5        Q.       Are you generally familiar with the

6 concept or the term and phrase damage to the

7 remainder?

8        A.       I am very familiar with the term and

9 the concept.

10        Q.       Okay.  Why did you not use or invoke

11 the concept of damage to the remainder to these

12 particular properties?

13        A.       When you refer to these particular

14 properties, sir, could you explain what these

15 particular properties are?

16        Q.       Sure.  The properties generally in the

17 area of the market study where the proposed

18 pipeline project is going to be contemplated.

19        A.       So if I may for clarification, you're

20 not referring to the properties that are proposed

21 to be crossed by the pipeline but those that are in

22 the area?

23        Q.       Yes.

24        A.       And you're wondering if I conducted a
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1 study of the remainder damages of those properties

2 that are not going to be crossed by the SAX route?

3        Q.       No.  No.  At question -- on page 1,

4 question 3, you were asked:  "What is the purpose

5 of your testimony, Enbridge Exhibit 2?"  And you

6 indicated you'd been asked to describe the process

7 followed in preparing land market studies

8 pertaining to real estate located in eight counties

9 traversed by Enbridge's Southern Access Extension

10 pipeline.  And you -- the purpose of the study was

11 to assist Enbridge Illinois in efforts in acquiring

12 permanent easement and temporary workspace across

13 numerous tracts of land in Livingston, McLean,

14 De Witt, Macon, Shelby, Christian, Fayette, and

15 Marion Counties.

16               So if that was the purpose, why did you

17 not include the concept of damage to the remainder

18 in your work study?

19        A.       Okay.  Again, just for clarification,

20 are you asking me about the decision to not include

21 a remainder properties study on the SAX parcels or

22 those parcels to be impacted by the SAX line or the

23 properties that I studied which are outside the

24 path but are near the SAX route?
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1        Q.       Well, let's start with the tracts that

2 are going to be affected by the pipeline.

3        A.       And what is your question pertaining to

4 those tracts?

5        Q.       Well, the question again is:  Why

6 didn't you include consideration of the concept of

7 damage to the remainder for those tracts that are

8 proposed to be adversely affected or potentially

9 affected by the pipeline?

10        A.       For two reasons, sir.  First of all,

11 that step and that analysis is a component of the

12 appraisal process that is followed in accordance

13 with appraisal standards prepared for eminent

14 domain proceedings.  That was not part of the scope

15 of work for this phase or this part of the

16 assignment.  The purpose of this particular

17 assignment was to arrive at an opinion or to

18 provide data, I should say, regarding sales of land

19 that have transpired in the counties along the path

20 of the SAX route.

21               Number two, even though my appraisal --

22 or, my land study report, excuse me, my land study

23 report does not include any reference to or

24 specific explanation regarding the impact of the
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1 SAX line to remainder properties, that's not to say

2 that I have ignored that issue or did not take it

3 into account.  It's just in the -- again, within

4 the scope of this assignment it was not a necessary

5 component and it was not included in the writing.

6        Q.       Okay.  Well, I think I can move on with

7 this:  The concept of damage to the remainder is

8 not a part of your study for this market study?

9        A.       Correct.

10        Q.       Okay.  With regards to your opinions

11 did any of the properties that you appraised

12 involve pipeline properties, including pipeline

13 properties that had the concept of damage to the

14 remainder involved?

15               MR. THOMAS:  I object to the question.

16 I think we just established the study and, hence,

17 the testimony about the study has nothing to do

18 with appraisals.  Your question presumes

19 appraisals.

20               DR. PLIURA:  Okay.  I'll -- let me

21 rephrase that.  I apologize.  It was probably

22 poorly phrased.

23        Q.       Mr. Batis, you indicated you looked at

24 sales of other properties; didn't you?
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1        A.       I collected data pertaining to sales

2 across eight counties, yes.

3        Q.       Okay.  And those were sales of

4 properties, real property in eight counties.  My

5 question is:  Did any of those sales involve

6 properties that had a pipeline through it?

7        A.       Yes, sir.

8        Q.       Okay.  And where in that study is the

9 exhibit or the data about those particular tracts?

10        A.       That is not included in the report.

11        Q.       Why didn't you include that in the

12 report?

13        A.       Not relevant, sir.

14        Q.       Okay.  So when you say it's not

15 relevant to include information about tracts of

16 properties that had a pipeline that you studied,

17 why wouldn't that be relevant?

18        A.       Because I have conducted over the last

19 20 years and specifically in the last three years

20 in the area of the SAX route extensive paired sales

21 analysis, and I've conducted research regarding the

22 impacts of pipelines on remainder properties and

23 found that as a general rule the agricultural

24 properties and the large tracts of properties
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1 located in these geographic areas along the SAX

2 route are not affected by the presence of

3 underground pipelines with regard to the values or

4 the sales of those properties.  That research

5 includes numerous paired sales where we matched

6 properties with and without pipelines, as well as

7 extensive interviews with market participants

8 including the following:  sellers, buyers, real

9 estate agents, brokers, property managers, tenant

10 farmers, land surveyors, engineers, auctioneers, et

11 cetera.  Based upon that research that has been

12 conducted all over the State of Illinois, it is

13 clear that there is no such impact and, thus, it is

14 not necessary to differentiate those sales that

15 were part of my land market study for the SAX

16 route.

17        Q.       Well, is there any -- is any of that,

18 what you just testified to, is any of that in your

19 actual written report?

20        A.       It would be impossible -- or, it would

21 be very impractical to include all of my research

22 over the last 20 years on this topic into this

23 report.  There is -- no, it is not all captured.

24 Let me leave it at that.
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1        Q.       Okay.  Is it correct to say you didn't

2 offer any opinions for the specific properties that

3 are planned to be traversed by the proposed

4 pipeline?

5               MR. THOMAS:  To clarify, any opinions

6 in the study or in his testimony --

7               DR. PLIURA:  Yes.

8               MR. THOMAS:  -- with respect to those

9 properties?  Thank you.

10        A.       That is correct, sir.

11        Q.       And you didn't offer any opinion at all

12 about the diminution of value that the project

13 would have on any of these individual properties?

14               MR. THOMAS:  Object to the form of the

15 question.

16        A.       Well, I -- may I answer?

17               MR. THOMAS:  You can go ahead.

18        A.       First of all --

19               JUDGE JONES:  I'm sorry.  I'm not sure

20 if there is an objection.

21               MR. THOMAS:  I'm sorry, Judge.  My bad.

22 I objected to the form of the question only because

23 it seemed to assume that there would be a

24 diminution of value as opposed to asking would
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1 there would be a diminution.

2               JUDGE JONES:  Are you still objecting

3 or --

4               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah, I object unless he

5 rephrases the question.

6               JUDGE JONES:  Response?

7               DR. PLIURA:  Well, I'm happy to

8 rephrase the question.

9        Q.       My question -- I want it to be clear.

10 You did not intend to offer any opinions based on

11 any potential diminution in value that the project,

12 the pipeline project might have any on particular

13 property; did you?

14        A.       Not unless you ask me questions about

15 them, sir, no.

16        Q.       Well, I don't want to be surprised.

17 I'm reading directly from your testimony, and your

18 testimony at -- indicates at page 3 that you were

19 not offering any opinion based on studies

20 pertaining to diminution in value, if any, to

21 properties resulting from the SAX pipeline.  I just

22 want to clarify.  You don't have an opinion on

23 that; do you?

24        A.       Not in that report, no.
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1        Q.       Okay.  You haven't -- you haven't

2 offered any opinion at all in this case; have you?

3        A.       I've consulted with my client on that

4 very issue over the last several years.

5        Q.       Okay.

6        A.       I'm not sure if you would -- if you

7 would interpret that or take that as offering

8 opinions, but I have done extensive work in that

9 area, extensive research, and I have communicated

10 opinions about that work to my client.

11        Q.       Okay.  I'm really just asking you, Mr.

12 Batis, none of those opinions, though, are in front

13 of this Commission as a part of your opinion as we

14 sit here; is it?

15        A.       Not that I'm aware of.

16        Q.       Okay.  With regards to your testimony,

17 you mentioned stigma and property damage.  Are you

18 familiar with that phrase or language that you used

19 in your opinion?

20        A.       And where did I reference stigma, sir?

21        Q.       You mentioned it in your report, your

22 testimony, you mentioned stigma and property

23 damage.

24        A.       Can you please direct me to the page



190

1 and line?

2        Q.       Boy, I'll have to -- give me just a

3 moment and I'll try to find it.  I don't have that

4 in my notes.

5               Let me move on.

6        A.       I just -- I'm sorry, I do see a

7 reference on page 5, question 12.

8        Q.       Yes.  With regards to that, could you

9 explain what it is that you meant when you used the

10 phrase stigma and damages?

11        A.       Sure.  Back in 2006 there was a lawsuit

12 filed in the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern

13 Division.  It was Howard Reeves and Colleen Reeves

14 versus Commonwealth Edison Exelon.  The lawsuit

15 resulted from -- that's Case Number 06-CV-5540.

16 The lawsuit stemmed from a tritium leak at the

17 Braidwood facility and an underground plume that

18 allegedly extended to and potentially impacted

19 thousands of properties.  There was -- the lawsuit

20 was brought to address whether or not there was

21 stigma as a result of the plume and whether or not

22 that stigma had any impact on property values.

23               I was hired by Harkins Cunningham out

24 of Washington, D.C., and Jenner & Block out of
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1 Chicago to conduct a two-year market study

2 regarding fear and stigma and how they relate to

3 property values specifically for properties in that

4 market area that covered about a hundred square

5 miles more or less.  What I found is that there's

6 extensive research and writings and appraisal

7 standards pertaining to the issue of fear and

8 stigma and how real estate appraisers must apply

9 those standards and those rules in valuing

10 property.  There's numerous -- I can cite them for

11 you if you'd like, but there's numerous published

12 works, appraisal literature that talks about fear

13 and stigma.

14               The point of all this is to the extent

15 that fear and stigma exists and is present in the

16 marketplace, it can only be concluded to be a

17 damaging effect on property if it's proven with

18 actual factual market data, not speculation or

19 guesswork.

20               And so what I sought out to do in my

21 studies of pipelines over the last many -- 10 to 20

22 years is to identity properties with and without

23 pipelines and to compare and research whether or

24 not there is such stigma as a result of pipelines.
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1 And my findings are that there is no such stigma as

2 a general rule and there is no such fear in the

3 marketplace that can be used as an element of

4 damages absent any proof to the contrary.

5        Q.       Okay.  Is that reflected anywhere in

6 this document, Mr. Batis, that you have submitted?

7        A.       I think, yes, it is.  On page 5 I make

8 reference to my -- the market studies that I've

9 performed, including the work pursuant to that

10 lawsuit filed in federal court.  I've done similar

11 market studies for pipelines all over northern

12 Illinois, but I believe that's captured in that

13 question 12, sir.

14        Q.       Okay.  Is there some type of reference

15 anywhere here that indicates that opinion?  I'm

16 talking about in your written testimony.  Is there

17 anything that the ICC or anybody looking at this

18 testimony that could come to that conclusion?

19        A.       Which conclusion is that?

20        Q.       Well, the conclusion that fear and

21 stigma don't have any effect on the property value

22 unless it's proven or whatever it was --

23        A.       I can't -- I'm sorry.

24        Q.       -- or whatever it was you said.
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1        A.       I can't answer for what anyone else

2 might conclude out of my report.

3        Q.       Okay.  Let's move on to crop yield

4 studies.  Did you do any crop yield studies for any

5 of the agricultural pieces that are involved as a

6 potential eminent domain tract?

7        A.       Yes.  Over the last several years we've

8 done analysis of productivity indexes for

9 properties with and without pipelines, and we

10 continue to do those studies, including interviews

11 with the same categories of market participants

12 that I referenced earlier, including interviewing

13 auctioneers and bidders and potential bidders that

14 attend and participate in auctions for properties

15 with pipelines.

16        Q.       Okay.  Did you include any of those

17 crop yield studies in your testimony?

18        A.       No, sir.

19        Q.       Okay.  Why not?

20        A.       Not relevant, sir.

21        Q.       Okay.  Did you analyze any of these

22 particular properties, not just general properties

23 but these particular properties, as to how they

24 might be affected from a crop yield standpoint?
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1        A.       And by these particular properties

2 again, could you please clarify which properties

3 are these particular properties?

4        Q.       Sure.  In your testimony -- in your

5 written testimony that you submitted here you

6 indicated that you were doing an analysis of I

7 believe eight counties; isn't that correct?

8        A.       That is correct.

9        Q.       Okay.  Did you do any crop yield

10 studies for analysis at all for the purpose of

11 preparing this market study on the tracts that

12 would be potentially affected by the pipeline?

13        A.       Yes, sir.

14        Q.       And did you include any of those crop

15 yield studies in your report?

16        A.       No, sir.

17        Q.       Why not?

18        A.       Not relevant to the study.  We found

19 that the findings were -- were such that the

20 pipelines had no bearing on the values of

21 properties based upon the productivity index

22 comparisons we did, and, hence, it was not needed

23 or relevant to the land market study prepared for

24 the client.
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1        Q.       Mr. Batis, how many crop yield studies

2 did you perform?

3        A.       It's not a matter of a -- a crop or

4 multiple crop yield studies.  It's a process in

5 which we undertake comparing many properties and

6 interviewing many owners.  It's all part of what

7 I'll call damage to the remainder or effects of

8 remainder properties studies.  It's not a

9 particular study by itself.

10        Q.       Okay.  For this particular project

11 which landowners did you interview, which farmers

12 or landowners did you interview for coming to an

13 opinion on crop yield studies?

14        A.       I don't -- I don't have a list of all

15 the market participants that we interviewed over

16 the last year and a half on this project.

17        Q.       Did you actually interview somebody,

18 though?  Your sworn testimony is you did interview

19 landowners?

20        A.       I understand I'm under oath, sir.  And,

21 yes, I did interview people personally.

22        Q.       The landowners?

23        A.       Landowners, real estate brokers,

24 surveyors, engineers, farmers, tenants, buyers,
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1 sellers, developers, I interviewed people of all

2 those categories along the Enbridge pipelines and

3 to understand the impact of the pipelines on their

4 decisions to buy, sell, rent, use, develop, and

5 market properties.

6        Q.       Do you have a list of the people that

7 you actually interviewed?

8        A.       I do not have that list with me, sir.

9        Q.       Does that list exist somewhere?

10        A.       Yes.  Yes, it does, sir.

11        Q.       How many different people did you

12 interview that were actual landowners in the

13 proposed pipeline tract?

14        A.       I don't know how many were landowners.

15 Landowners that were crossed by a pipeline,

16 probably between 30 and 40.

17        Q.       You have a list somewhere of their

18 names and when you -- when you interviewed them?

19        A.       Yes, sir, and details about the

20 interviews.

21        Q.       Okay.  What type of document?  Is that

22 on a Word document, an Excel spreadsheet, what?

23        A.       It's a combination of --

24        Q.       Notes?
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1        A.       I'm sorry.  Go ahead, sir.

2        Q.       Or notes in general?

3        A.       A combination of all of the above.  It

4 includes an Excel sheet, hundreds of pages of PDF

5 documents, Word documents.  It's quite a voluminous

6 file, if you will, but it includes all the above.

7        Q.       I'm talking about for this particular

8 project.  Is that correct for this particular

9 project?

10        A.       This is research I have done

11 specifically for pipelines in Illinois, including

12 this project.  My findings are not specific or

13 germane to one particular pipeline.  It's a study

14 of market conditions and market impacts that

15 pertain to all pipelines.  I do not differentiate

16 between when I'm studying the market what project

17 it's used for.  It's used for across-the-board all

18 properties that are affected by pipelines.

19        Q.       Did you analyze revenue loss attendant

20 to the presence of a pipeline across farm ground

21 with reduced yields?

22        A.       Absolutely I did, yes, sir.

23        Q.       Okay.  What type of information did you

24 use when you -- when you analyzed revenue losses
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1 attendant to the presence of a pipeline?

2        A.       We interviewed property owners and

3 tenants of farms that pay cash rents and studied

4 whether or not there is a reduction or loss in

5 rental payments based upon the presence of one or

6 more easements, not just pipelines but any kind of

7 encumbrances to the title of the land as a result

8 of those encumbrances.

9        Q.       And those are in your -- your notes or

10 the materials that you have, those -- those

11 analyses are in there?

12        A.       Indeed they are, sir, yes.

13        Q.       Okay.  Did you do any soil compaction

14 studies related to pipelines and its effect on crop

15 yields?

16        A.       No, sir.

17        Q.       Did you do any studies on the effects

18 of a pipeline and ground recharge in areas where

19 the ground will not freeze or thaw because of the

20 pipeline's existence and how this might affect crop

21 yields?

22        A.       I did not conduct any studies, no.

23        Q.       Okay.  In the past six months have you

24 talked to any actual landowners that are subject of
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1 these eminent domain proceedings?

2        A.       Specifically on the SAX route, sir?

3        Q.       Yes.

4        A.       No, sir.

5               DR. PLIURA:  No further questions.

6               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Dr. Pliura.

7               Mr. Turner, do you have any questions

8 for Mr. Batis?

9               MR. TURNER:  Yes.  Your Honor, I want

10 to say I have several and I'll be as quick as I can

11 with them.

12                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. TURNER:

14        Q.       Mr. Batis, what does your professional

15 services agreement provide with respect to your

16 services for Enbridge for the Southern Access

17 pipeline?

18        A.       Appraisal and consulting services.

19        Q.       And what is the scope of the appraisal

20 and consulting services?

21        A.       Well, the appraisal services, which

22 includes ultimately or potentially the valuation of

23 specific property rights with regard to specific

24 properties, will be prepared if requested by the
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1 client pursuant to condemnation proceedings.

2               The consulting phase or work includes a

3 rather wide and broad range of services, including

4 collection of market data, preparation of the land

5 market study, communication with Enbridge and its

6 representatives and its counsel regarding various

7 valuation issues, and the continuation of the land

8 market study and remainder property study to be

9 relied on as part of the evidence and market proof

10 or market evidence for the appraisals if needed for

11 condemnation.

12        Q.       And is your agreement that you've just

13 described is it in writing?

14        A.       No, sir.

15        Q.       For the Southern Access Extension were

16 you hired under an oral agreement?  Do you know

17 what I mean by that?  Not written.

18        A.       I do not have a written agreement with

19 my client.

20        Q.       Okay.  What is the oral understanding

21 about your compensation?

22        A.       That I perform services as requested, I

23 invoice my client, and they pay.

24        Q.       Was there any understanding about how



201

1 the compensation and your bill would be determined?

2        A.       Based on an hourly rate and

3 reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses attributed

4 to the project.

5        Q.       What is your hourly rate under your

6 oral agreement?

7        A.       For this particular project, $350.

8        Q.       Is there any other compensation

9 provided for such as a bonus or something measured

10 by something other than the number of hours

11 devoted?

12        A.       No, sir.

13        Q.       And in doing your work, do you engage

14 subcontractors to assist you in providing data?

15        A.       Providing data amongst other resources

16 but, yes, that's included.

17        Q.       The data that is used and the testimony

18 in this case came from numerous sources.  Just very

19 briefly, can you recall -- recount for me those

20 sources?

21        A.       Well, the land market study is the

22 result of about a year and a half of years of work.

23 I'm not sure that I can recall every source, but I

24 can tell you in general it would include public
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1 record searches, so information obtained from

2 either township assessors or county offices,

3 including but not limited to recorder of deeds

4 office, supervisor of assessments office, zoning

5 office, land planning offices.  Other appraisal

6 firms have provided us assistance in data.  Public

7 and private subscription services that maintain

8 databases.  Obviously, information from public

9 sources such as the Internet.  That would include I

10 think pretty much most, if not all, of the sources

11 that we relied on.

12        Q.       Are you familiar with any land data

13 services provided for the sale of Illinois

14 farmland?

15        A.       Yes.

16        Q.       And what services are you familiar

17 with?

18        A.       There's a publication that comes out

19 from the Society of Rural Appraisers that publishes

20 information about land values and land sales in

21 Illinois broken up by regions of the state.

22        Q.       Is --

23        A.       I refer to that -- I use that as a

24 source as well.
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1        Q.       Is that publication reliable in your

2 view?

3        A.       I think that it's a starting point.

4 It's not the end-all, but I look at it as being a

5 source for data.

6        Q.       Are you familiar with where the

7 Illinois Society of Professional Farm Managers and

8 Rural Appraisers obtains its data for its

9 publication?

10        A.       I believe I have a pretty good

11 understanding of that, yes.

12        Q.       Okay.  And what is the source of that

13 data?

14        A.       I believe that's submitted by members

15 and by landowners.

16        Q.       Are you familiar with --

17        A.       I'm sorry, members of that

18 organization.

19        Q.       Yes.  And are you familiar with whether

20 or not that there's an independent land data

21 service that also provides that organization with

22 information about farm sales throughout Illinois?

23        A.       I don't know specifically what the

24 source of their data is, sir.
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1        Q.       Okay.  From a geographical perspective,

2 were your experiences over the past multiple

3 decades used to come up with the opinions expressed

4 in your testimony in this case?

5        A.       Yes, sir.

6        Q.       And were your experiences, for example,

7 in Will County considered when expressing opinions

8 about, for example, Fayette County?

9        A.       Yes, sir.

10        Q.       And would you say it's generally true

11 that it would be proper for someone like you in

12 rendering a market study to consider the effect

13 that a pipeline has in, for example, Will County

14 when rendering opinions about Fayette County?

15        A.       Well, depending upon the purpose of the

16 study and the specific issue being looked at by the

17 professional or the appraiser, it may very well be

18 appropriate or it may not.  I would need more

19 specifics on exactly what issue would be -- that

20 you're referring to would be studied.  If it's land

21 values in Fayette, I would say no.  If it's the

22 effect of pipelines on remainder properties, I

23 would say absolutely yes.

24        Q.       Okay.  And wasn't -- to make it -- to
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1 boil it down into one -- one expression or one

2 explanation, wouldn't it be fair to say that one of

3 the purposes of your -- or, the main purpose of

4 your testimony -- written testimony that's been

5 filed in this case was to demonstrate that your

6 client, the Petitioner, Enbridge, had some guidance

7 as to what level would be appropriate in terms of

8 engaging in acquisition negotiations with

9 landowners?

10        A.       I'm not sure that, first of all, the

11 characterization fair is appropriate, and I'm not

12 sure that that even properly or accurately

13 characterizes my work or what my work was used for.

14 I think it's -- that makes it a little more

15 simplistic than my services as I understood them to

16 be actually were.

17        Q.       I wasn't meaning to --

18        A.       But I think that's a -- I believe

19 that's a component or part of what I was doing and

20 my work was useful in their efforts, but I don't

21 know that that's the primary or only use.

22        Q.       Okay.  Just very briefly now, what --

23 give an example of another use then.

24        A.       Okay.  Another use is for my client to
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1 be able to understand, based upon my experience and

2 my research in these particular areas of remainder

3 properties, whether or not different effects or

4 impacts on the pipeline could have a negative

5 impact or a diminution in value to a remainder

6 property.  And those issues are related to things

7 such as a single line versus multiple lines on a

8 property -- and by lines, of course I mean

9 underground pipelines in this context -- the

10 direction of the pipe, whether it be parallel to a

11 property line or diagonal; whether the location of

12 the pipeline goes through the front, rear, or side

13 of a particular property; whether the product

14 that's going through a pipeline has any impact on

15 the remainder properties; whether the depth of the

16 pipeline, the depth of cover, the diameter of a

17 pipe, and whether those would have any impact on

18 remainder properties; whether the proximity of a

19 pipeline or multiple pipelines to improvements

20 would have any impact on remainder properties and

21 the contributory value of buildings; whether or not

22 pipelines would have any impact on the cash rental

23 values of properties and the agricultural use of

24 properties; whether or not the pipelines would have
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1 any impact on the future or potential development

2 of a property, for instance subdivision into rural,

3 commercial, or industrial uses.  Those are all

4 examples of how my work has been and my research

5 has been shared with the client in this case.

6        Q.       With respect to value of prime farm,

7 highly productive, naturally rich farmland, for

8 example in McLean County, Illinois, where eminent

9 domain rights are potentially going to be exercised

10 in condemnation proceedings, can you tell me your

11 opinion about what the major components are of a

12 prospective market maker in farmland when price

13 levels are determined?

14        A.       I'd be happy to, but if you can help me

15 with one term I'm not familiar with, a potential

16 market maker.

17        Q.       A potential farmland buyer.

18        A.       A buyer, okay.  And so your question

19 regarding the buyers is what impact does the -- if

20 I can characterize for you -- the fertile soils of

21 McLean County, what impact does that have on a

22 buyer's decision?

23        Q.       Let me -- let me restate the question,

24 please.
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1        A.       That would be helpful.

2        Q.       Yes.

3        A.       Thank you.

4        Q.       That was kind of complicated.

5               When someone considers the purchase of

6 the soil that has been described here as highly

7 productive and fertile, is there consideration

8 given by a potential buyer into factors other than

9 cash rent?

10               MR. THOMAS:  Can I ask a question,

11 Counsel?  Are you asking this question as in what

12 would the impact of these kind of considerations be

13 on the data on which he relies in this particular

14 study or are you going afield from that?

15               MR. TURNER:  No, in this study.

16               MR. THOMAS:  So your question, I

17 gather, pertains to whether or not the kind of land

18 market data that this study relies on would reflect

19 whatever concerns you're addressing.  Is that

20 right?

21               MR. TURNER:  Yes.

22               MR. THOMAS:  Just so we're clear.

23 Okay.  I have no objection.

24        A.       Okay.  So if I may, the question is a
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1 person buying highly productive and fertile soil,

2 you're wondering what is the consideration given to

3 what?

4        Q.       Factors -- are there any factors, major

5 factors considered other than cash rent or --

6        A.       Yes, sir.

7        Q.       Okay.  And what are those?

8        A.       I think all property characteristics

9 come into play in a typical market transaction.  I

10 think buyers are -- I should preface that by saying

11 the presumption is that well-informed, educated

12 buyers working in their own best interest are aware

13 of the locational characteristics of the property,

14 the physical characteristics of the property, and

15 the prevailing market conditions.  I think they

16 take into account obviously the soils, the

17 elevation, slope of property, the mix of tillable

18 and non-tillable acreage, the soil productivity or

19 yields that are published and available through

20 public sources, the road limits and road posting

21 limits, the infrastructure around the properties.

22 I think as we interview property owners we find

23 that all of these factors typically come into play

24 in the majority of the transactions by typical
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1 buyers.  I can't speak for all of them, but I think

2 that captures what the majority of educated buyers

3 take into account.

4        Q.       Let me -- let me narrow the question

5 down to only financial considerations.  Is there a

6 financial consideration that you're aware of for

7 the highly productive farmland other than its

8 income-producing capacity?

9        A.       Well, I think there's -- if you're

10 referring to tax consequences, exchanges of

11 property, there's -- I'm sure there are cash or

12 economic consequences to most transactions.  I'm

13 not sure if that's what you're referring to.

14        Q.       Are you aware of any market demand

15 created for highly productive farmland because it

16 is a -- has safe features to it, permanent features

17 to it, long-term investment features to it from a

18 financial point of view which are unrelated to its

19 income-producing capacity?

20        A.       I am.  And these start to become very

21 broad and general principles that affect value.

22 There are socioeconomic, external, governmental

23 influences.  There's all types of in a very general

24 sense factors out there that affect long-term and
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1 short-term acquisitions and motivations of buyers.

2 This is starting to get -- if I may, starting to

3 become a very broad discussion about things

4 affecting property values.  I don't know if there's

5 something specifically you want to ask me, but I

6 would say there are many, many external factors

7 that affect properties and the buyers' decisions

8 regarding those properties.

9               MR. THOMAS:  Let me just add to that --

10               MR. TURNER:  I'm done with that line of

11 questions.  I'm done with that line.  I'll move on.

12               MR. THOMAS:  Okay.

13               JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Turner, approximately

14 how much more do you have?

15               MR. TURNER:  Ten minutes, 15 minutes.

16               JUDGE JONES:  I mean I think you

17 indicated last time you had about 30 in total for

18 all the witnesses.  And we don't hold our counsel

19 to --

20               MR. TURNER:  Can I have just 15 more

21 minutes, Judge?

22               JUDGE JONES:  Well, I'm just trying to

23 get an idea here.  I've been relying on some of

24 your earlier estimates about your total of the
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1 three.

2               MR. TURNER:  I've exceeded it I'll

3 admit.

4               JUDGE JONES:  It was 30 minutes total.

5 As I say, we don't hold counsel strictly to those

6 estimates, but I think it's fair given the

7 estimates to kind of get an indication of how much

8 more we have, especially since we essentially

9 skipped lunch based in part upon those

10 representations about how much cross there was

11 going to be.

12               MR. TURNER:  Please cut me off -- Your

13 Honor, if 15 is too long, please cut me off when --

14 in 15.  And, Your Honor, right now if you tell me

15 that I only have five more minutes, then I'll just

16 take five.

17               MR. THOMAS:  The only thing, Your

18 Honor, that I would add -- this is Dale Thomas --

19 is I have not objected to, you know, questions

20 which I think, quite frankly, went fairly far

21 afield from the immediate testimony that was given

22 in this case.  But if we continue on those kinds of

23 broad questions sort of unrelated as I can tell to

24 the particular testimony, that's what's -- that's
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1 what's causing the extra time in my view.

2               MR. TURNER:  I'll be very brief, Your

3 Honor.

4        Q.       Could you briefly describe -- and this

5 will be the only question on this topic -- the

6 difference between valuing -- determining the value

7 of the right-of-way or easement and determining the

8 fee value?  In one sentence or two can you explain

9 the difference?

10        A.       Not in one sentence or two, sir, but

11 I'd be happy to try to explain and keep it as brief

12 as possible.

13        Q.       Sure, please do.

14        A.       Okay.  The valuation -- the fee value

15 of property of the underlying land is based upon a

16 comparison or market study of values being paid for

17 similar or comparable property.  Once that fee

18 value is determined -- and I will use as an example

19 a piece of -- a hypothetical piece of land has a

20 value of $10,000 per acre.  Once that is

21 determined, if the objective is to come up with a

22 value or an opinion regarding the easement strip or

23 those rights being sought by a grantee, that

24 process then works off the fee value that -- if the
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1 fee value is worth $10,000 for the full bundle of

2 rights per acre, in theory, any acquisition or

3 division of those bundle of rights that results in

4 somebody buying less than the complete bundle

5 obviously would be buying something that's worth

6 less than $10,000 per acre.

7               So we have conducted studies over the

8 last 15 years in many market areas to ascertain

9 what is the going rate, if you will, or what is the

10 common or typical percentage of the fee value that

11 landowners attribute to strips that are encumbered

12 for various types of property rights, including but

13 not limited to pipeline easements.

14        Q.       Okay.  And have your studies been --

15 or, do you consider them the type of reliable

16 evidence that would support opinions such as the

17 ones you filed in this case?

18        A.       Not only would they support those

19 opinions, but they are all done in compliance with

20 professional standards, the uniform standards of

21 professional appraisal practice, the appraisal of

22 real estate, and any other applicable standards and

23 code of ethics of our industry.

24        Q.       Do you know -- can you quantify the
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1 accuracy of your studies in any way?

2               MR. THOMAS:  You're talking -- Counsel,

3 you're talking again about the studies that are

4 reflected in his testimony?

5               MR. TURNER:  Yes.

6        A.       Understanding that appraisal by nature

7 is an opinion, I don't know that there's

8 necessarily proof that a particular number is right

9 or wrong as much as there is market evidence to

10 support the opinion.  And that opinion can be based

11 on a number of things.  Empirical data, something

12 that we can quantify, qualitative data, qualitative

13 analysis, interviews with market participants,

14 there's a number of ways to collect data and to

15 formulate that data into an opinion.  There's no

16 standard or test that you can put it up against to

17 see if it's accurate or not.  It's based upon a

18 number of factors.

19        Q.       Have you been involved -- and this is

20 my last question I believe, depending on how you

21 answer it.  Have you ever had personal experience

22 in the purchase or sale of a row crop farm?

23        A.       Experience in that I was one of the

24 parties involved?
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1        Q.       Or a broker or an appraiser for the

2 sale of a row crop farm.

3               MR. THOMAS:  Well, I'm going to object

4 because I don't see what that has to do with his

5 testimony of this market study.

6               MR. TURNER:  Well, I can tie it up.

7 I'm just trying to be short.  But the listing of

8 properties that he has included in the report,

9 especially for McLean County, is going to include

10 almost exclusively row crop farms, and I was just

11 curious if he had any hands-on experience as a

12 buyer or seller or broker or appraiser for the sale

13 of a row crop farm.

14               JUDGE JONES:  Objection overruled.

15               MR. THOMAS:  Yes, I withdraw the

16 objection.  That's fine.

17        A.       I have no experience as a buyer or a

18 seller.  I am not a broker, so I have no experience

19 as a broker.  I have appraised thousands and

20 thousands of acres of property in Illinois over the

21 last 20 years.  Some were row crop, some were not,

22 some pastureland, some wooded land.  It's just a

23 mix of virtually every type of property.  So I

24 would say in a very general sense the answer would
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1 be yes, I've appraised properties that are row

2 crop.

3        Q.       But have -- my question was a little

4 more narrow.  I appreciate your answer and I'm not

5 suggesting you're avoiding it.  But was the

6 appraisal for the purpose of the sale of the row

7 crop farm?

8        A.       Very often when I'm asked to appraise

9 properties I don't know what the client or intended

10 user of the report is doing with my number, if

11 they're using it to buy, sell, estate plan, gift.

12 So I can't answer that specifically.

13               MR. TURNER:  Thank you, Judge.  I have

14 no further questions.  I apologize for the length.

15               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Turner.

16               Is there redirect?

17               MR. THOMAS:  There is not.

18               JUDGE JONES:  That concludes the

19 questions of Mr. Batis.  Thank you, sir.

20               THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21                      (Witness excused)

22               JUDGE JONES:  Off the record briefly

23 regarding sort of the matters to be attended and

24 the scheduling pertaining to them.
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1                      (Discussion off the record.)

2               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  We

3 briefly discussed a couple of things, one being

4 Rule 707, another being a briefing schedule,

5 another being the motion for admission of the

6 intervenors who have provided testimony that are

7 represented by Dr. Pliura.

8               I think Mr. Thomas would like a few

9 minutes off the record to attempt to put together

10 and get agreement on a briefing schedule.  So for

11 that purpose, we hereby go off the record.

12                      (Discussion off the record.)

13               JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

14 There was an off-the-record discussion for the

15 purposes indicated.  One of the topics was a

16 briefing schedule, and I think the parties have

17 come up with kind of an alternative to what might

18 normally be a briefing schedule.

19               Mr. Thomas, do you want to identify for

20 the record what you believe that to be?

21               MR. THOMAS:  I will do so.  And if I

22 err in my description of it, I'm sure anybody can

23 jump in and correct me.

24               What we've agreed, Your Honor, is that
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1 we would have on the 23rd of December a proposed

2 order draft that Enbridge would circulate to all of

3 the parties for comment.  That draft would have

4 certainly Enbridge's description of the testimony

5 of its witnesses.  Staff will have provided us by

6 that time with their descriptions.  And that way --

7 and we will have taken -- made an attempt to also

8 accurately describe the testimony filed by the

9 Pliura Intervenors.  That would be circulated to

10 the parties as I represented.

11               Then the parties would get back to

12 Enbridge on the 3rd of January with their

13 conclusions -- their conclusion paragraphs.  There

14 would be space in the proposed order which would

15 indicate where the conclusions would go, and each

16 of the parties would submit to Enbridge on the 3rd

17 their proposed conclusions.

18               On the 6th Enbridge would undertake to

19 file the document consisting of the proposed order,

20 which would probably be 95 percent agreed upon we

21 think, and then probably three documents containing

22 the differing conclusions of the parties, and we

23 would file that with the Commission and make sure

24 it's served on all the parties.
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1               That was the agreement.

2               JUDGE JONES:  And that filing on the

3 6th will be made by Enbridge Illinois?

4               MR. THOMAS:  Correct.

5               JUDGE JONES:  You mentioned 95 percent

6 agreed to.  Is the other five percent the differing

7 conclusions or is the other five percent something

8 else?

9               MR. THOMAS:  I think -- you know,

10 again, the other parties can chime in if they -- if

11 I misrepresent this, but I think it's basically the

12 conclusions.  I think the parties -- one of the

13 other parties I believe it's accurate to say

14 thought about 95 percent of these would be agreed

15 upon.

16               And under this proposal Enbridge will

17 have circulated on the 23rd a draft of the proposed

18 order.  And if it turns out to be some parts of

19 that other than conclusions that people want

20 changed, we will try to have that reflected by the

21 3rd -- by the 6th so that it really -- if this

22 works correctly, on the 6th the filing should

23 consist solely of the agreed upon I will use the

24 term 95 percent of the proposed order and then the
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1 differing proposals for conclusions.

2               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  And that will

3 contain citations to the record; is that correct?

4               MR. THOMAS:  That's correct.

5               JUDGE JONES:  And the table of

6 contents, will that be in there?

7               MR. THOMAS:  Table of contents will be

8 in there.

9               JUDGE JONES:  And you believe that to

10 be an agreed-to proposal?

11               MR. THOMAS:  I do.

12               JUDGE JONES:  Does anybody have any

13 objection to that proposal?

14               DR. PLIURA:  Pliura Intervenors do not.

15 It sounds like the basics of what we've agreed

16 upon, other than when they -- when we get this

17 final -- when we get the proposed order, there may

18 be something -- I can't envision what it would be,

19 but there may be something that we would want to

20 add different other than the conclusion, but I

21 guess we'll see what that -- that consists of on

22 the 23rd.  But I think everybody perceives --

23               MR. THOMAS:  Right.

24               DR. PLIURA:  -- that it will be pretty
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1 much the conclusions that differ, although there

2 may be something else.

3               JUDGE JONES:  Would those differences

4 other than conclusions be reflected in that January

5 the 3rd circulation?

6               MR. THOMAS:  Yeah.  January 6th is when

7 we would file it.

8               JUDGE JONES:  Right.

9               MR. THOMAS:  On the 3rd we would make

10 sure that everybody seemed to be in agreement with

11 what I will call the 95 percent and then there

12 would be the three different sets of conclusions.

13               One other thing we agreed to, Your

14 Honor, is that we would -- like, for example, on

15 the 23rd we will circulate that proposed order in a

16 Word version, not simply a PDF, so that the parties

17 can deal with it.

18               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Now, it's

19 anticipated, of course, the conclusions will

20 differ, but I'm trying to focus on the -- what

21 other differences there may be in what is

22 circulated on the 23rd.

23               Now, if parties have -- other parties

24 believe that something else within that document
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1 should be changed, will they be expected to submit

2 that not to the Commission but to each other or to

3 Enbridge Illinois, however that's structured, along

4 -- on the 3rd along with their -- on or before the

5 3rd along with their prospective proposed

6 conclusions, which we know will differ?

7               MR. THOMAS:  I believe that's right, on

8 or before the 3rd.

9               Enbridge Illinois will endeavor to be

10 as neutral as possible in our description of the

11 record as it exists so that the -- and be as

12 accurate as possible in describing the arguments

13 made by the parties.  I anticipate that we may not

14 be able to completely capture correctly all the

15 arguments that Mr. Pliura or Mr. Turner might want

16 to make, but if they could provide those to

17 Enbridge Illinois on or before the 3rd, we can

18 incorporate those in the proposed order.

19               JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

20               Are there any other clarifications or

21 any objections with respect to that proposed filing

22 and the process that's part -- of which the filing

23 is a part?

24               DR. PLIURA:  None by the Pliura
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1 Intervenors.

2               MR. TURNER:  No objection, Your Honor.

3               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Let the

4 record show that that scheduling proposal is hereby

5 adopted.  It envisions a filing with the Commission

6 on January the 6th, but as part of the process and

7 as part of the proposal there are the dates of 23

8 December and 3 January which are interparty

9 circulations and as part of the schedule they are

10 approved also.  As indicated, the document will

11 include citations to the record, as should any

12 attachments thereto, and tables of content.

13               I would ask that a copy of the January

14 6th filing when it is made be sent to me in Word

15 format.  Of course, other parties would be

16 receiving a copy of the actual filing on January

17 the 6th as well electronically.

18               MR. THOMAS:  Correct.

19               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Anything else

20 with regards to that?

21                      (No response)

22               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Just very

23 briefly, the clients of Dr. Pliura who filed

24 testimony are going to have the testimony moved
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1 into the record by means of a motion to be filed.

2 Is that correct, Dr. Pliura?

3               DR. PLIURA:  That is correct.

4               JUDGE JONES:  What do you propose for a

5 filing window for that?

6               DR. PLIURA:  A filing what?

7               JUDGE JONES:  A filing date, filing

8 window.

9               DR. PLIURA:  The end of the week.

10 Friday.  What would that be?  Today's the 16th, so

11 by Friday the -- I don't have a calendar in front

12 of me.

13               MR. THOMAS:  It's the 20th.

14               DR. PLIURA:  20th.

15               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So that

16 motion will be filed on the 20th.  And the

17 affidavits will be filed on or before that date

18 also?

19               DR. PLIURA:  Yes.

20               JUDGE JONES:  Is that the intention?

21 Okay.  And you can go ahead and assign exhibit

22 numbers to those affidavits that -- one moment

23 here.  Do you recall how your testimony is -- those

24 testimonies are identified?
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1               DR. PLIURA:  I do not.

2               MR. OLIVERO:  I don't believe they have

3 numbers, Your Honor.

4               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So how do you

5 want to do that?  Do you want to give them all kind

6 of a common prefix Pliura Intervenors Exhibit

7 something or other?

8               DR. PLIURA:  Yeah.

9               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  And then you

10 can work your way through them.  Let's say if

11 there's a Pliura Intervenors Exhibit 1, whoever

12 that may be --

13               DR. PLIURA:  Yep.

14               JUDGE JONES:  -- then the affidavit

15 could be 1A if you want to do it like that.

16               DR. PLIURA:  Yes, that's fine.

17               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Does anybody

18 have any objection to either the process or to the

19 admission of those items into the evidentiary

20 record upon that filing being made?

21               MR. THOMAS:  No objection by Enbridge.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

23 are no objections, so leave is given to make the

24 filing, and those evidentiary items consisting of
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1 various individuals' testimony as well as the

2 affidavits will be deemed part of the evidentiary

3 record upon their being filed.

4               As noted, there was a brief discussion

5 regarding compliance with Rule 707, and it's my

6 understanding that Counsel for Enbridge will check

7 into that and make whatever filings it deems

8 appropriate to demonstrate compliance.  Is that

9 right?

10               MR. THOMAS:  That is correct.

11               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

12 One moment.

13               I think that covers the bases.  Let me

14 make sure, though.  Anybody have anything else then

15 before we conclude this hearing?

16               MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, it's Dale

17 Thomas.  If I could just ask, I believe in the --

18 it may have been in the off-the-record discussion,

19 the court reporter asked that I send her an e-mail

20 requesting specifically expedited treatment, and I

21 don't have her -- I don't have her e-mail address.

22               JUDGE JONES:  Do you want that in the

23 record?

24               MR. THOMAS:  No, no, it can be off the
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1 record.  I just want to make sure everything wasn't

2 shut down before I got it.

3               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Is there any

4 other matters then before we mark the record heard

5 and taken?

6                      (No response)

7               JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Let the

8 record show that this hearing is concluded.  In

9 accordance with and subject to the post-hearing

10 scheduling set forth above, this matter will be

11 marked heard and taken very shortly.

12               Our thanks to the parties for your

13 participation and cooperation.

14               At this time let the record show this

15 matter is hereby marked heard and taken subject to

16 the above-referenced post-hearing scheduling.

17                  (The hearing adjourned at 2:38 p.m.)

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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